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Independent Auditors” Report
To the Members of Triveni Lnergy Systems Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Triveni Energy
Systems Limited ("the Compony”), which comprisc the Balance Shewl as al Maich 31,
2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended and a Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory
information (herein after referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the mallters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements
based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Anaudit involves performing procedures to obtain audil evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of matetial-
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial coritrol
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind
AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required
by the Actin the manner 50 required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the
state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its loss
(financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the
Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the
paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit;

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

() the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows
and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with
relevant rule issued thereunder;




(¢) on the basis of the written representations received from the direclors as on
March 31, 2018 taken on record. by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial coritrols over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in ” Annexure BY; and

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i} The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact
its financial position;

ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iiiy There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv} The reporting on the disclosure relating to Specified Bank Notes is not
applicable to the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018,

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111N

\
R/
(Sudhir Mallick)
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Place: Noida (U.P.
Date : /’(// %(
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date under
the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” to the members
of Triveni Energy Systems Limited on the [nd AS financial statements as of and for
the year ended on March 31, 2018.

1.

(%]

Since the Company does not have any items of fixed assets with if, the provisions
of clavses (()(a), ()(R) & (i}{c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report)
Order, 2016 are not applicable to-the Company.

Since the Company does not have any inventories, the provisions of clause (ii) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable
to the Company. ‘

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clauses (iii) (a), (iii)
(b) & (iii) (c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are
not applicable to the Company for the current year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the
Company has not granted any loan, made investment, provided guarantee or
security as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, provisions of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies

(Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company for the current
year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits within the provisions of sections 73 to 76
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

As per the information & explanation given to us, the Company is not required to
maintain cost record under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and any other
statutory dues to the extent applicable to it. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts in respect of statutory dues
were in arrears as at March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.




(b} According to the information and explanation given to us there were no. dues

of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of kixcise, Value
Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax and other statutory dues, which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute.

8. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
borrowed any amount from financial institution, bank and government and has
not issued any debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (viii) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

9. According to the information and explanation given to us, there was no money
raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) nor any term loan was taken by the Company during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

10. According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the

Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

11. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
paid /provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2016 are not applicable.

12.In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xii) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies {Auditors Report} Order, 2016 are not applicable.

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is in compliance with
Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable for all transactions with related
parties and details of transactions with the related parties have been disclosed in

the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

14. According to the information and explanations give to us, the Company has not
made preferential allotment or private placement of shates or fully or partly
convertible debenture during the year.

15. According to the: information and explanations given to us and based on our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
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16. The Company is not required to be registered undet section 45-IA of the Reserve

Bank of India Act 1934,
For J.C. Bhalla & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn, No, 0011TIN

A

(Sudhir Mallick)
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Place: Noidg (UL.P.)

Date:}(/f /\w'}a/&




Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Triveni
knergy Systems Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining interral
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting critetia
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Intetnal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the

risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud
Qr error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls

woytered
ntanis




41

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process desipned to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; {2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of [inancial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or limely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111N

___/

{Sudhir Mallick)
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Flace: Noida (UJ.P.
Pl Py )
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TRIVENT ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Hakanic ofhuel as at March 31, 2018

CH st b & Hroiesends, nedess oblweaiae slated)

Notwditrent agsots R
Invedlment properly 2 36,628.08 as,038 pd
0D B aaeet (O . A 3 A
Total non-current assets 36,931.21 36,8931.31
Currgnt assets
Finanelalassets
L Cash and cash equivalents 4 (a) 618.84 100,28
#.  Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4 (b) - G20
it Other financial assets 5 " 2.65
Total current assets 618.84 18716
Total nssets 37,550,056 37,048,37
LQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Beuity shave capital 6 34,500.00 20,500.00
Chher equity 7 (965,42 841,95
Total equiky 37,534.58 19,658, 11
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i.  Borrowings 8 - 450.00
ii. ‘Frade payables : 9 14,18 T1.50
it Other financial flabilities 10 - 16,968.82
Other current liabilities 1l 1.29 o
Total current liabilitles 15.47 17,430.32
Total Habilities 15.47 17,430,32
Total equity and liabilities 37,550.05 37,088.37
The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements
As por our report of even date attached
For J.C.Bhalla & Company For andon behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Encrgy Systems Limited

Charlered Accountants
Hirm's registration number ;

L~

W Suresh Taneja Atul Agarwal

Partner Director Director
Membership No. 86051

DIN ;1 00028332 DIN : 06875769
Place : Noida

S By 2014




TRIVENTENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED -

Statenient of Profitand Loss for the veor ended March 3, 2018

O s T 3 thewsads, andea otheraer staled )

Otligr income

Total income 153 e R
Lxpenses ;

Finance costs ' 13 35.04 46,00
Othor expenses 14 89.96 98,01
Tatal expenses 125,00 i)
Loss before tax (123,47} (126,71)
Tax expense 15 -
Loss for the year (123.47) (‘12&7])

Other comprehensive income

A (i) [ems that will not be reclassified to profit ov loss
A (i) Income tax relating to tems that witl not be reclassified to profit or toss

f
B (i} ltems that may be reclassified to profit or foss

B (ii) Income tax relating to itens that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year (123.47) (26,71}

Earnings/(loss) per equity share of 1 each

Basie 16 0.0 ©.01)
Difuted 16 {0.01) 0.01)

The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements

As por pur report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company For and gp behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Energy Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants

Bry's vegistration number ; 00IATIN

/¢

Sudhir Maltick Suresh Atul Agatwal

Partner Director Director ;5},:\8\[\ .
Membership No, 80051 e 16

DIN: 00028332 DIN : 06875769

Place : Noida g{l’.)
Date : [{,’ /\/\-m




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Steternent of (V‘hamg o in Fouity for the vear ended March 31, 2018
(A emoueris iy 3 Mogsmnds, adess olhe e slaled)

A ity alinee capltal

Bruity shares of ¥1 cach issued, subscribed and fully paid up

As at 31 March 2016 ' - o ' 20,500.00]
Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2017

2{1,500.00
Equity shares issued during the year 18,000.00
As at 31 March 2018 38,500.00

B. Other equity

Balance ag at 31 March 2016 {715.24) {715.24)
Loss for the year (126.71) (126.71)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - N
‘Total comprehensive income for the year {126.71) (l 26,71}
Balance as at 31 March 2017 (841.95) {B4'1.95)
Loss for the year {123.47) (12347
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - "
Total comprehensive income for the year (123.47) (123.47)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 (965.42) {965.42)

The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company For and ¢y behalf of the Bodrd of Directors of Triveni Energy Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration numbgy : 001111N

8

Sudhir Mallick

uresh Taneja Atul Agarwal
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 80051 rd \ ’\i_,f:"}/ ‘5\#” "
DIN : 00028332 DIN : 06875769 x:‘?«" ‘f‘i_ﬁ\
; ﬁ i f Noidg \ i
Place : NosdvU.P.) B\ {py jr }
Date /[1 M“"'I u‘.g 3\&)%‘ 2y
A b .,
- \fﬁf\"'w‘?;\",/




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Stalement of Cash Flowes for the yoar ended March 31 2018

A smiount i & Hrowsaunds, naless ofhwrisize staled)

Cash flows from eperating activities
Loss before tax (123.47) (120,71}
Adjustments for
Ihlerest Do {1.53) (7.50%
Finange costs 35.04 36,40
Working capital adjustments : SR
Change in trade payables 2.68 005
Change in other liabilities 1,29 :
Cash generated from f{used in} operations (85.99) {97.594)
Income tax (paid}/ refund - -
Net cash outflow from operating activitles (85.99) {97.816)
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for purchase of investment property (16,914.82) E
Decrease/ (increase} in deposits with banks 54.23 95,27
Interest receiverd 4,18 12.69
Net cash inflow/(putflow) from investing activities (16,856.41) 108 46
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital 18,000.00 -
Repayment of barrowings (45000} B
Interest paid (89.04) (3.60)
Net cash inflow/(outfiow) from financing activities 17,460.96 {3.640)
Net increase/ (decrease} in cash and cash cquivalents 518.56 6.90
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 3 {a)) 100,28 93,38
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {refer note 5 (a)) 618.84 140.28

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activites:

450.00 54.00
Cash flows (450.00) (89.0:[)
Finance costs accruals - 35.01

Balance as at 31 Maxch 2018

-

The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company B
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration numir : 001111N

4

s
Sudhir Mallick Taneja
Partner Director

Membership No. 80051

DIN : 00028332
Place : Noida

owe fly Hjon) 201

Atul Agarwal
Director

,b \
DIN : 0687576% };@"’j fﬂf\‘,

fﬁ!
{EREN ?
\\@\\ > ‘Q‘/

nd on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Energy Systems Limited
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TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Corporate information

Triveni Energy Systems Limited (“the Company”) 1s a company limited by shares, incorporated anl
domiciled in India, The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 1005 of
equity share capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at 8% floor, Express
Trade Towers, 1516, Sector 16A, Noida, Uttar Pradesh- 201301,

Note 1: Significant accounting policies 4
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financtal statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, uniess
otherwise stated.

{(a) Basis of preparation and presentation
(i} Compliance withInd AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(#} Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost

convention, Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services,

—

(iii) Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current
All assets and labilities have been classified as current or non-curvent as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. The Company has

ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of cwrent and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

(b) Revenue recognition
The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
~ when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition,

(c) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for

its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get reacly for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(d)

(e)

()

Impairment of non-financial assets

Nutlitancial assets are tested for Impaliment whehever events of changes in circimstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the ameunt
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher ot an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assels
{cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impatrment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. When an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961,
Deferred tax assets and lHabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss excenl
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively,

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accurmulated impairment losses, if any. Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is
capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as stated in Schedule 11 along with residual values of 5%. RSy "’}:




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

{8}

Provistons, contingent liabilitics and contingent asocto

)

(i)

(iv)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
u result of a past event, it is probable Ll the Company will be requited W sellte the obliga ton,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised. as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settfe the present obligation a t the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settie the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be recerivedd
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, ls
disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefils is
remote. If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for
an item dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the standalone fina ncial

statements of the period (except in the extremely rare circumstances where no refiable estimate
can be made).

A contingent asset is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of incorne is
virtually certain, then the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each batance sheet date,

Financial assets

(i)

(1)

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
*  those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
catried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss,

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business modet for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

+  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
/”’_S 3;
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cost. A gain or loss on a debl investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is devecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these [inancial agsets is recognised using the effective interest rate methocd.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are helct for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI.

«  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FEVTOCT are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(iii} Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financinl Instrunients, the Company applies expected credit loss
{ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its finaneial
assets cartied at arnortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when
+ the Company has transferred the rights to recetve cash flows from the financial asset; or
retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients,

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(i) Classification
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities

or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument,

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities;

Financial Habilities
The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:

+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
+ those measured at amortised cost,

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial Hability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

(il Measurement
Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial Habilities
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs

,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(j}

(k)

that are directly atteibutable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of finarieial
lHability carried at fair value through prolit or loss are expensed in profit or loss,

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of finarcial
liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its finarmcial
liabilities:

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial labilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Finarwial
linbilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising; on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

Amortised cost: Financial Habilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designatexd as
at FVTPL, are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is naol
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs’ line item,

(i

——r

Derecognition

Equity instruments :
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity, No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying

amount of the financial lability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the.net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

3! R,
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v

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the standalone balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on
hand, balance with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investiments with an
original maturity of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalento as defincd above.

Earnings per share ‘

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic eatnings per sharc
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Note 2t Envestiment property

Crrdsd darcylng amount -
Opening gross eartying amount

36,5420,8)

36,998,08
Additions . . “
Debetions - T
Closing gross carrying amount ) 36,928.08 36,508,080

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Opening accumulated depreciation and impairnent
Depreciation charge/ impairment losses - -
Clesing accumulated depreciation and tmpairment -

Net carrying amount 36,928.08 36,520,408

(i) Deseription about fnvestment propertics
The Company's investment properties consist of parcel of land at Dibai, District Bulandshahar (Uttar Pracesh), india

(if) Amount recognised in statement of profit & loss
There is ro amount related to investment property which is recognised in statement of profit & loss (31 March 2017: T Nil)

(iti) Restrictions on realisability and contractual obligations
The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investmont property and no contractual obligations to either purchase, construct or
develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance and enhangements,

{iv) Fair value

The investment property owned by the Conipany is situated i1 the vicinity of sugarcane growings areas, The property was purchased in the yoar
2015-16 at the circle rate from the Holding Company. In view of slowdown in real estate and industrial activities, the fajr value cannl he
determined realistically in the absence of transactions of similar properties (including size) in the vicinity of the subject propesly,

MNote 3: Encome tax balances

Income tax assels

"Tax refund receivable {net) 3.13 - 3.13
3.13 - 313 -

Income tax Habilities
TProvision for income tax (net) - B

Note 4: Cash and bank balances

{a} Cash and cash equivalents

At amortised cost

Balances with banks

- in eurrent accounts £18.83 100,27
Cash on hand 0.01 0.01
"Total cash and cash equivalents 618.81 100.28]

{b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

At amortised cost

Balances with banks
- in fixed deposits (original maturity exceeding three months but upte one year) - 54.23

Total other bank balances . -
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Note 5: Other fnancial assets

At amortised cost

[nterest seerued on bank depostts - - 2.65 -

‘Total other financial assels

Note 6: Equity sharve capitil

AUTHORISED
Cyuity shares of €1 each 50,000,060 50,000.00 50,600,000 50,000.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
fiquity shires of T each 38,500,000 38,500.00 20,500,000 20, 500,00

(i) Movements in equity shave capital

i ¢
Az al 31 March 2016 20,500,000 0, 500,00
Muovement during the year - .
As at 31 Maech 2017 20,500,000 20, 500,00
Eqquity shares issued during the year 18,000,000 18,000.00
As at 31 March 2018 38,500,000 38,500.00

{it) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a par value of 1/ per share. The hoider of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is suljject to the approval of the
sharahoiders in the ensuing Annua General Meoting,

[n the event of Hquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares arc entitled to reeeive the remaining assets of the Company, after meeting
all liabilities and distribution of ali preferential amounts, in proportion o their sharcholding.

{iil) Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

Triveni Engincering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) 38,500,000 20,500,000

{iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Triveni Enginccring & Industries Limited (Holding Company)} 38,500,000 100% 20,500,000 100%

Note7: Other equity

Retained carnings {965.42) (841.95)
Total other equity (965.42) {841.95)

(i} Retained earnings

Mar Mac-17
QOpening balance (841.95) {715.24)
Lass for the year (123.47) (126,71)
Closing balance (9465.42) {841.95)

The amount that can be dis!fr"sl;'

equity shareholders is determined considering the requitemeptsgEthe
Companies Act, 2013. :

ghthe
1208
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Note 8;: Current borrowings

Unséeureds al amortised cost
Repayable on dumund , S
- Loans from related parties {refer note 17} . A500

‘Total cusrent borrowings - B0

(i} The weighted average effective interest rate on Joans is 8% per annum (3t March 2017: 8% per anmn)

Note 9: Trade payables

de payables {at amortised cost)

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
smali enterprises (refer note 22)

- Total outstanding dues of ereditors other than
micro eaterprises and smal} enterprises

‘Total trade payables 14.18 - 1150 :

1438 - 11.50 s

Mote 10: Other financial liabilities

At amortised cost

Capitat creditors - « 16,914.82 E
Interest accrued - - 54.00 -
Total other financial Habilitles - - 16,968.82 -

Note 11: Other liabilities

Statutory remittances 1.2¢ - - -

Total other liabilities 129 - - z

Note 12: Other income

FliMar-18 1-Mar-17
Iaterest income from bank deposits 153 7.30
Total other income 1.53 7.30

Note 13: Finance costs

Interest on loan 3501
Other interest expense 0.03 -

‘Total finance costs 35.04

L
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Nuote 14: Other expengey

Sopwico cliepns W

Legal and professional expenses satb {544
Tayment to Auditors (see (i) below) 1180 11,50
Rates and toxes 1.24 240
Miscellancous expenses 046 -
‘Tatal other expenses 89.96 43,01

() Paymaont o Auditors

Satumry audit fee -
Totaf payment Lo duditors

11.80 . LLS0
11.80 1150

Note 15: Income tax expense

Incame tax recopnised in profit or loss

Curront tax
Doferred tax

‘F'otal income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiptied by Company's tax rate:

L.ogs before tax

(123.47) (126.71)
Income tax expense catculated at 25,75% {(2017: 29.87'%) {(31.79) (38.00)
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit 31.79 38.00

Total income tax expense recognised In profit or loss

Note 16: Earnings per share

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company [A] (123.47) (126.71)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS (B} 20,993,151 20,508.000
Basic earnlngs/ {loss) per equity share (face value of ¥ per share) [A/B] . {0.01) {0.01)
Diluted earings/ (loss} per cquity share (face vatue of T 1 per share) [A/B] (0.01} (0.01)
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Note 17: Related party transactions

{i} Related parties where control exists

(a) Triveni Engineering & Industries Linvited {Holding Company) (FEIL}

(ii} Related parties with whom transactions have taken place :

{a) Holding company

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL)

(b} Fellow Subsidiary
Triveni Entertainment Limited (TENL)

(iii) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances:

Nature of transactions with Related Parties

Service charges expense

Jt-Mar-18

70.35 “ 70.35

31-Mar-17 68.95 - 08.95

Interest expense 3t-Mar-18 - 35.01 35.01

31-Mar-17 - 36.00 56.00

Issue of equity share capital 31-Mar-18 18,000.00 - 18,000,00
31i-Mar-17 - - -

Repayments of capital creditors (for purchase 31-Mar-18 16,914.82 - 16,914.82
of investment property) 31-Mar-17 . - -

Repayment of borrowings (Principal) 31-Mar-18 - 450.00 450,00
31-Mar-17 - - -

Outstanding balances

Payable 31-Mar-18 - - .

31-Mar-17 16,914.82 504.00 17,418.82

(iv) Terms & conditions:

The transactions with related parties, including service charges/ interest expense, are made on terms which are at arm’s length

after taking into consideration market considerations, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof. The outstanding balances at
the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.
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Maote 18: Capital managenent

Fou the pozpos: of caplial sanagument, capital inclucdas ol equity of the Company, The primaty obiective of the cinpital management is to maximize sharehoklor vadua, The
Company does not have significant borrowings,

The Company osnages ils capilat straciure and makes adjustments n light of changes iy economie conditions, The Company may resort to further igawe of eapital to Fund
expansion of business. The Company monitors eapital structure trough gearing rtio which al the end of reporting period was as follows:

Currest boreowings (note 8) Caes T aE000
Tracle payables (sote 9) REATH 11.50
Other financial liabilities (note 10) . 10,908.82
Total debi RN 1781),32
Less: Cash ond cash equivalents (note 4{a)) (018,84} (104.28)
Net debt {A) (641,66} C17,330.04
Totak equity (note 6 & note ?) 37,5.3k.54 1.638.05
Total equity and net debt () 36,929.92 I6,968.09
Gearky ratio {A/B) <G A0.85%%

Upto last year, other financial liabilities were higher due 1o acquisition of the investment property. ‘The position has been corrected during current yoar u|*!¥)ri fumcling of
investment, inciuding throwugh realisability thereof.

No changes wuse made in the objectives, policies or process for managing capital dusing the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 Mareh 2017,

The Company is not subject to any exteenally imposed capital requirements.

Note 19: Flnaneial risk management

The Compuny’s financtal liabilities comyprise of trade payables. The Company”s Fnancial assels are presenily nominal and comprise of cash and bank balances. The Corpany's

activities dovs not expose it to market risk and credit visk, The Company manages its liquity through internal aceruals and capital infusion From the Hold tng Company, <>

In view of nascent stage of business, the liguidity ratios are not relevant, The operations of the Company during early stages of business will be supporled by 1he Holding
Company through loans or through equity infusion, as appropriate. All financial liabifitics shall mature within one year from the reporting date.
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Note 20: Fair value measurements

() Finsneial instedments by category

“Cashand bank batances

618.84 51
Other linanciai assets - 2.65
Total financial assets #1884 18716
Financlal Habilities
Borrowings - 450,00
Trade payables 14.18 1150
Qther financial liabilities - 16,908.82
Total financial liabilities 14.18 17,450.32

{ii)

their fair values due to their short-term nature.

Fhe management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilitics recognised in the financial staterents spproximate
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Note 21 Commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assels

Based on managerent analysis, there are no inaterial commitments, contingent liabilitics and contingent assotd as at 31 March 2018 (31 Mlarely 2017 ¢ D).

Nuote 22: Disclosures required under Sectlon 22 of the Micro, Suatl and Medium Lnterprises Develop
Based on e intimation received by the-Company from its'suppliors rogarding theix statug undor thie M

Act, 2006, the relevant information is pravide:

The principal amount and the inte
as at the end of the year

(i) Principal amount

(i} Interest due on above

due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises Development

Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during cach accounting -
year,

The amount of intorest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appeinted day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Developmuent Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting yeat; and -

The amount of farther interest remaining due and payable cven in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Note 23: Standards issued but not yet effective :

The Ministey of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide notification dated 28 March 2018 has issued the Companies ([ndian Accaunting Standards) Amernglment
Rules, 2618 which has come up with omission of Ind AS 11 Construction Contriets & Ind AS 18 Revenwe with the introduction of Ind AS 115 Reveate from
Cantracts with Customers and amendments in various other Ind ASs. These amendments are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after A pril

2018 and the Company intends to adopt these amendments when they become effective. Tha new Ind AS that are issued, but not yet effoctive, uplo the date
of issuance of the Company's financial statements are disclosed below:

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers : Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step madel to account for reveue arising from contracts with custamors,
Under Ind A5 115 revenue is recognised when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service (i.u, an asuet)
to a customer (i.e. when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset) at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entily expects o be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The new revenue standard will supersede all current revensie recognition
requirements under Ind AS. Either a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective application is required for accounting perlods commensing
onor after 1 April 2018. The Company is in process of evaluating the requirements of the said standard and its impact on its financial statements,

Note 24: Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 14 May 2018 subject to approval of shareholders,

As per gur report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company For ggdion behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Energy Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants
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J. C. BHALLA & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

BRANCH QFFICE : B-5, SECTOR;G, NOIDA - 201 301 (U.P)
TEL. : 481 - 120 - 424 1000, FAX : +81-120-4241 007
E-MAIL : taxald@vant. com

Independent Auditors” Report

To the Members of Triveni Engineering Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Triveni ingineering
Limited (“the Company”), which com prise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2018, the staloment
of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income}, the statement of cash flows and the
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and a summary of the sipnificant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “Ind AS
financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, inchuding the [ndian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules
issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section i
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan E
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial 5
statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
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auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Irad
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that axe
approptiate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Dircetors, g well ag evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS linancial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the
Company as at March 31, 2018, and its loss {financial performance including other

comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equily for the year ended on that
date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Ordexr”} issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143{(11} of the Act, we give in the
Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order,

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief wete necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows and the
statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

{d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued
thereunder;

{e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act;

(fy  with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”; and




(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Comparies (Audit and Audilors) Rules, 2014, in ouy opinion anid
to the best of our information and accovding to the explanations given to us:

iy The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact s
financial position;

ii}y The Company did not have any long ferm conbracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ity There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv) The reporting on the disclosure relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable
to the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111N

T

[ (Sudhir Mallick)
Partner
Membership No. 80051
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in Paragraph | of the Independent Auditor’'s Keport of even date undler the heading
“Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” to the members of Triveni Engineeri ng
Limited on the Ind AS financial statements as of and for the year ended on March 31, 2018.

1.

Since the Company does not have any items of fixed assets with it, the provisions of clausies
{i}(a), (i)(b) & (i}{c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are rol
applicable to the Company.

Since the Company does not have any inventories, the provisions of clause (ii) of paragra ph
3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the Company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, provisions of clauses (iii} (a), (i) {b) & (i) () of
paragraph 3 of the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the
Company for the current year.

According to the information and explanations given fo us and in our opinion the Company
has not granted any loan, made investment, provided guarantee or security as specified
under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, provisions of clause (iv)
of paragraph 3 of the Companies {(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the
Company for the current year,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits within the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable to the Company.

As per the information & explanation given to us, the Company is not required to maintain
cost record under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax,
Goods and Servicse Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues to the extent applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts in
respect of statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2018 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable. '

(b} According to the information and explanation given to us there were no dues of Income
Tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods
and Services Tax and other statutory dues, which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not borrowed
any amount from financial institution, bank and govermment and has not issued any
debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (viii) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
{Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.




9.

10.

1L

12,

13.

14.

15.

16

According fo the information and explanation given to us, there was no money raised by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (inclading debt instruments) nor any term
foan was taken by the Company during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (ix)
of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company or on
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of
our audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
paid/provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are
not applicable, ‘ :

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xii} of paragraph
3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of
the Act, where applicable for all transactions with related parties and details of
transactions with the related parties have been disciosed in the Ind AS financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us, the Company has not macdle
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debenture during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him,

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111

(3

(Sudhir Mallick)
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Place: Noida

Date: [ (4 &’{'P.}bk mgmg'l/&‘{g




Annexure B to Independent Auditors” Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 oof
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Triveni Engineering
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind A8
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal l'inancial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuting
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designad to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies amnd
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2} provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permif preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance wilh
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements clue to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject

to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate .
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or ks
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indja.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn, No. 001111N

'.’-""’-',’_”—-a i
{Sudhir Mallick) i
Partner |
Membership No. 80051

Place: Noida (U.P.)

Date : /‘[/{ f\/\mtp r—f 1o L’g




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Babnce Sheet as af March 31, 2018

Ll annts i Y Hensiiinds, wodess ofherioie siabed)

ASSHTS
Non-current assots
fvestment property 2 43,593.78 43,598, 78
Income tax assets (net) 3 17.18 1714
Total non-current assels 43,610.96 43,610,
Current assets
Financial assets
i, Cash and cash equivalents 4 {n) 508.2% 91,44
i Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4 (b) - 4.2
iti. Other financial assets 5 . 265
Total current assets 568,21 544,39
Lol assets 44,179.17 43,769,35
EQUTTY AND LIABELITIES
FQUETY
Equity share capital G 26,500.00 20,506, 03¢)
Other vquity
i.  Equity component of compound financial instruments 6 15,291.74 -
i, Retained eariings 7 (2,350.75) (2.212.81}
Total equity 39,440.99 16,287.1%
LIABILITIES
Non-cutrent liabilities
Iinancial Habilities
i. Borrowings 8 4,717.94 -
Total non-current liabilities 4,717.94 -
Current lHabilities
Financial liabilities
i, Borrowings 9 - 450,00
ii. Trade payables 10 18.95 11.50
iii. Other financial liabilities 11 - 25,0110.66
Other current liabilities 12 1.29 -
Total current liabilities 20,24 2547216
‘Total liabilities 4,738.18 25,472,16
Tofal equity and labilities 4417917 43,759.35

The accompanying notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration nember : 001111N

ur Mallick

Partner
Membership No. 80051

Place : Noida (UJF.)
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Debajit Bagchi

Atul Agarwal
Director

and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Engineering Limited




TRIVENI ENGINEBERING LIMEITED

Stadetnent of Prolitand §.oss for the vear ended March 3, 14908
(Al wonnts e ¥ thossends, uanless ellrasie Skaded )

Other income 13 1.51 Y L
‘Total income 1.51 L 4]
lxpenses

linance costs i 44.72 36,00
CHber exponses 15 94.73 44.01
Total expenses 139.45 F3LL
Loss before tax (137.94) {126.’5‘6}
Tax expense: :

- Current tax 16 -

- Deferred tax 16 - -
Tolal kax expense - -
Loss For the year {137.94) (126,76}
Other comprehensive income

A () hrems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -

A (1) Income tax relaling to items that will not be rectassified to profit or loss -

B (i} ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss -

B {ii} Income tax relating Lo items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - .
Other comprehensive income for tie year, net of tax - -
'Total comprehensive income for the year (137.94) (426.76)
Earnings/(loss) per equity share of T1 each :
Basic 17 {0.01) o0 -
Diluled 17 {0.01} (0,081

The accompanying notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For 1.C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Acconntanty
rin's registration namber JA0111IN

. /

Debhjit Bagcehi
Diredtor

Sudhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80051

DIN A 42561320
Place : Neida (

Date:/L{ w /\/\
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Engineering Limited

Atul Agarwal
Director —




TRIVEN] ENGINEERING LIMITED

Statement of Chisnges in Bauily o the vear ended Barch 1, 2018
U somennta i Hiotennds, wiless atherize shoted)

A Bepuity share capltal

Funity shares of T each issued, subscribed and Mully padd up

A st 31 March 2016

20,500.00
Changes during the year -
As at 31 March 2017 20,500.00
Equity shiores issued during the year 6,060,00
As at 31 March 2018 26,500.00

B Onther eouity

Balance as at 31 March 2016

{2,086.05} {24064 _)
Loas Tor the year - (126,76} {i20,76)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - . e
‘Tatal comprehensive income for the year - {126.76) {126.76)
Balance ag at 31 March 2017 - (2,212.81) (2,212.81}
Logs for the year . (137.94) (137,94
Uther comprehensive income, net of income tax - - -
issue of compound financial instrusnents (Preference shaves) {refer note 6 & 8) 15,291.74 B 15,2917 .
‘Totat comprehensive income for the year 15,29%.74 {137.94) 15,153.80
Balance as at 31 March 2018 15,291.74 {2,350.75) 2,940.94

The accompanying notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of lhese (inancial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For .C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants
Fiem's registration number:

PLITIN

L

Sudhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No., 80051

DiNY 02561320
Place : Noida (U.F.

Date :/

v

Atul Agarwal
Director

DIN : 06875?69
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TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Staternent of Cash Flows for the year ended March 3, 2008
(A wmounis i & thoteaiabs, ondess otherwise shiled}

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax {137.94) l26.760)
Adjustments for

Interest income (1.51) (7.25)

Finance costs 44,72 36,00
Working capital adjustments :

Change in tracle payables 7.45 0.0

Change in other financial liabilities (1,376.14) -

Change in other Habilities 1,29 -
Cash used in operations (1,462.13) (97.96)
[ncome tax paid - .
Net cash outflow from operating activities (1,462.13) (97,96)
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for purchase of investment property (23,580.52) -
Decrease/{increase) in deposits with banks 54.23 6,27
Inlerest received 4,19 12.08
Net cash inflow from investing activities (23,522.10) 108.45
Cash fiows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shave capital 6,000,00 -
Proceeds from issue of compound financial instruments (Preference shares) (refer note 6 & 8) 20,000.00 -
Repayment of short term borrowings (450.00} - .
lnterest paid (89.04) Boemi &
Net cash inflowfloutflow) from financing activities 25,460,96 (3.60)
Net increase/ {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 47673 6.89
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 4 (a)) 91.48 84.59
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refet note 4 (a)) 568.21 91.48

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activites:

Balance as at 31 March 2017 - !
Cash flows 4,708.26 (89.04)
Finpnce costs accruals 9.68 - 35,05
Balance as at 31 March 2018 4,717.94 - -

The accompanying notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration numbey/: COT1TLN
Sudhir Mallick

: [9
Partner

Membership No. 80051

I’lace de'x

Swcy i

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Engineering Limited

-

Atul Agarwal
Director

,.-us-“,

DIN : 06875769
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TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Corporate information

Triveni Engineering Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and
domiciled in India, The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100%% of
equity share capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at 8™ floor, Exgoress
Trade Towers, 15-16, Sector 16A, Noida, Uttar Pradesh- 201301,

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, umless
othérwise stated.

(@)

(b}

Basis of preparation and presentation

() Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS5) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) {Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical cost comvention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost

convention. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services,

{iii} Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. The Company has

ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits wilt flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment of non-financial assets

- Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate

that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment oss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and valie in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. When an impairment.logs
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TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(d}

()

(£)

subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the agset is increased to the revised eslimate of g
recoverable amount, so however that the increaged carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs dlirectly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs are not capitalised during extended periods in which active
development of qualifying assels is suspended. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax

The Income tax lability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of agsets and Habilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed al
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income ot
directly in equity respectively.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accurnulated impairment losses, if any. Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is
capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as stated in Schedule IT along with residual values of 5%.




TRIVENT ENGINEERING LIMITTIN

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

{g) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(M

(i)

. (iit)

(iv)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructives) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting pertod, taking into account the risks and uncerlainties surrounding the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefils is
remote. If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for
an item dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the standalone financial

statements of the period (except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimmate
can be made).

A contingent asset is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of incorme is
virtually certain, then the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date,

{h) Financial assets

{®

(ii)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or ioss}), and
*  those measured at amortised cost,

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company meastres a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial agsets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(iii)

(iv)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business moded for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measuremment
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recagnised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired, Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financtal assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI,

Fair value through profit or losy (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amaortised cost or FVTQCT are measured at fair value through profit or loss,

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss

(ECL} model for measurement and recognition of impairment foss associated with ils financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCT debt instruments.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when

* the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(i) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(1)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financiat liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:

* those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
* those measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it

is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. e




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

()

{ii} Measurement
Equity instruments
Equily instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, Transacition
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equily.
Financial liabilities
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, iy the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs

that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financlal
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial labilities depends on the classification of financial

liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
labilities:

* Fair value through profit or logs (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

* Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods . The
carrying amounts of financial labilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

{iii) Derecognition
Equity instruments

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in

equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities ‘ .
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s

obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying

amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise preference shares redeemable at
par at the end of 20 years from the date of allotment, however after 3 years of allotment the
Company shall have the option to {to be exercised at the beginning of each year) to redeem these
preference shares at any time. The preference shares shall be non-convertible, The preference shares
have a coupon rate of 10% and shall be non-cumulative.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is initially recognised at the fair value
which is determined as the present value of the eventual redemption amount discounted at the

market rate of return, The equity component is initially recognised at the difference between the fair

e,
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TRIVENT ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to thae finanaial atatements for the year ended Maveh 31, 2018

U]

{m)

()

value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the Hability comporint,
Any directly atiributable costs are allocated to the fability and equity components in proportion to
their initial carrylng amounts,

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is
meastired at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The equily component of a
compound financial instraments is not remeasured subsequently.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss, unless it qualifies for inclusion
in the cost of an asset.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable xight
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any defertals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows,
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregatec.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the standalone balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on
hand, balance with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an
otiginal maturity of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash

. equivalents as defined above.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would

Rt
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. /‘f\ge@r};‘;}
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Note Z: {nvestment praperty

Cross earrylag amount

Opuning gross cazrylng amosnt A3,590.78 43,5078
Additions . .
Detetions B -
Cloging gross cirrylug amount 13,543.78 43,503,

Accumulated depreciation and impaicment
Opening accumulated depreciation and impairment - >
Ulepreciation charge/impairmant tosses

Closing accumulated depreciation and impairntent

Net carry ing amount 43,593,784 43,593, 70

{i} Description about investiuent proportics
The Company’s investment properties consisl of pareet of tand al Dibai, District Bulandshahar (Utiay Praciesh), India.

(i) Amount recognised in statement of profit & loss
There is e amount related o investment properly which is recognised in statement of profit & loss (31 Maech 2017 2 Nil}

{izi) Rustrictions on realisability and contracteal obligatiens

‘the Company has no restrictions on the realisabilily of fis Investment property and no contractual obligations W cither purchage, consiruct or develop
investment property or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

{iv) Fairvalue
The fovestment properly owned by the Company s sitbated in the vicinity of sugarcane growings areas, The property was purchased in the year 201516 it

the circle rate from the Holding Company, In view of slowdown in real estale and industeial activities, the fair vahee cannol be determined realisticalty in
Uhe absenee of transactions of similar properties (including size) in the vicinity of the subject property.

Note 3: Tncome tax batances

Income tax assets
‘Tax refund receivable (net) - 17.18

- 17.18
- 17,28 - 17,18

tncome tax liabilities
Provision for income tax (net) .

Mole 4 Cash and bank balances

{a) Cash and cash equivalents

At amortised cost

Balances with banks

- in current accownts 568.21 41.4Y
Cash on hand 0.00 0,00
Tokal cash and cash equivalents 568,21 91.48

{b} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

M8

At amortised cost

Balances with banks
- in fixed deposits (original maturity excecding three months but upte one year) - 54.23

'Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivaients - 54.23

Note §: Other financial assets

At amortised cost f:;;’".-;""?“[«..\»\., -~ )
interest accrued on bank deposits /’///L}\(\ p“...".. - \\\‘\\ - - 2.68 A QC':\}’
Tuotal other financial assets W g - - 2.68 {‘;_W!
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TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED i -

Maesten (o Ui paneiad shasoments Tor He year soded Moch 31, 2014
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Note 6: Shave capital

AUTHORISHD

Equity sluares of T 1 each AOLH0,000 200,000,480 250,000,000 250,000.40
Preference shaves of T 1 each H0,000,800 54,060,00 ) - K

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBELD AND FULLY FAID UP
Lauity shaves of ¥ | cach 26,500,000 26,500.0{ 20,500,006 250000

% Non-Cumulative Redeemabie Preference shises of 21 cach
- Byuity component of compound Rmangial instruments 20,000,000 * 15,201,714 - -

(i) Movenents in share capital

Movements in equity shave caplial

Nuinber of shases

A3 ot 31 M

ch 2016 20,500,000 20,5604
Movement during the yea: Z v
As at 31 March 2017 20,500,000 20,514,060
Bquity shares issued during Lhe year 6,000,004 6,600,00
As at 31 March 2018 26,500,000 26, 800.60

Movemuents in equity component of compuound financial instruments- 10% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares

As at 31 March 2016

Mavement during the year - W
As at 31 March 2017 - z
Eyquity compenent of compatikd finaneial inslrmments issued duaring e year 20,000,600 ¢ 15,2917
As at 31 March 2018 20,000,000 ¢ 15, 291,74

{ii) Terms and rights attached to shares

Terms and rights attached to equity shares
“The Company has anly one class of equily shares with a par value of ¥ 1/« per share. The holder of cquity shares is entitled 1o one vote per share. The

Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rapees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in
the ensuinyg Arnual General Moeling.

in the evenl of liquidation of the Company, the holders of cguily shares ave entitled la receive the ramaining assets of the Company, alter meeting all
Habilitics and distribution of ail preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Terms and rights attached to preference shares

Each preference share has a par value of ¥ 1/- cach and is redeemable at par at the end of 20 years from the date of allotment, however after 3 years of
allotment the Company shall have the option {to be exercised at the beginning of each year) to redeom these preference shares at any time. The preference

shares shali be non-convertible, The proference shares have a coupon rate of 10% and ave non-cumulative, The preference shares rank ahend of the equity
shares in the event of liquication.

{iii) Details of shaves held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

Equity shares of 31 each

‘Triveni Engincering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) 26,500,000 20,500,000

10% Non-Cumulative Redeemabte Preference shares of T1 each
Svastida Projects Limited (Fellow subsidiary) 20,800,600 *

{iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity shares of 21 each
Triveni Enginecring & Industrics Limited (Holding Company} 26,500,000 100% 20,500,000 00%

10% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of 1 each
Svastida Projects Limiled (Fellow subsidiary) 20,600,000 * 100% - -

* This represents total number gtjzgg{gzg\&xl:Cumulativc Redeamable Preference shares of 21 cach issued. The equity component of such compaund financial =,
instrumants is teflected in/Ulis';liB!L:u jnd thiglinbility component of such financial instruments is reflected in non-current borrowings {refer note 8).
Ay A
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Mok 7: Betabil earnings

_- ar- i -;tr H

2212.81) (2.0896.05)
Loss for the yaar {137.94) (1226760}

Closting balance (2,350.75) (2,2 00481)

The amount that can be distributed by the company as dividinds o its equity sharcholdurs b determined consiclering the sequirements af the Coragaanics
Act, 2013,

Nole 8: Non-Current borrowings

Unsecured- at amortised cost

Liability component of compound financial insiramoents
- 10% Non-Cunulative Redeemable Profercnce shiaves of €1 eaels (refer vote 6 1,717.94 K

‘Total Non-current borrowings 4,717,94 -

i} 'TTw compewnnuk financial nstruments (Preference shares} are presented in the balance sheel as foliows:

1M
20,008.00

Face value of compound financial Instrements (Preference shares) issucd

Equily component of compound financial instraments (Prefercace shares) frefer nole 6} (15,291.74) -

4,708.26 -
interest accrued 9.68 .
Liabilily component of compound firancial instruments {Preforence shares)- Non-currenl borcowings 4,717,9%4 “

(ii) Tha elMective intesest rate of alove borrowings is 7.5% per annum (31 March 2017 Nil),

Nuote 9t Current borrowings

Unsecured- at amortised cost
Repayable on demand
- Loans from related parties {refor nole 14) - 450.00

Total current bozrowings - 450.00!

(i) The weighted average effective interest rate on loans is 8% per annum (31 March 2017: 8% per annum).

Note 10! Trade payables

Trade paya es {al amortised cost)

- Total outstanding ducs of micro enterprises and
siall enterprises {refcr note 23)

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micra enterprises and small enterprises

Total trade payables ‘ 18,95 - 11.50 -

1895 - 11.50 -

Note T1: Other financial liabilities

3i-Mar1

At amortised cost

Capital creditors - - 23,580.52 -
Interest accrued - - 54,00 -
Cther payables - - 1.376.14 -

Total other financial liabilities - - 25,010.66 -




TRIVENI ENGINEURING LIMITED
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Naote 12: Other Habilitles

tntatony ralitaiicen

‘Fotal other labilllies 129

Note 13 Otleer inceme

Interest income fromn bank doposits 151 74
Total othey income 151 7,28

MNofbe T Finance costs

Interest on Borrowings A4.72

Tolal finance costs 41,72 116,(10’

Nate 15: Other expenses

Service charpes 6495
Rales and toxes E 20
Legal iand professional expenses 15.55
Paymaent to Auditers {see (i) below) . 13,50
Misceltancous expenses .
1'?0&:!1 otlier expenses . 94,01

(i} Payment 10 Auditors

Statulory audit fee - . i ) . . 11.80 LESD

Total payment to auditors 1180 11,50

MNote 16: Income lax expense

[ncome tax recognised in profit or loss

Current tax
Deferred lax

Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss -

Recenciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

Lass befare tax T " (137.94}
Income tax expense caiculated at 25.75% (2017: 29.87%) } {35.52) (38.00}
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit 35.52 38.00

Tolal income tax expense recognised in profit or loss . -

Nate 17: Earnings/(loss) per share

Mar:
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company [A] {137.94)
Weighted average nuraber of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS {B] 20,664,384
Basic carnings/{loss} per equity share {face value of 2 T per share) [A/B] 0.01) (0.01)
Dituted carnings/ (loss) per equity share (face value of ¥ 1 per share) {A/ 8] {c.01) {0.01)
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TRIVEN! ENGINEERING LIMITED
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Nate 18: Related party transactions

{i} Related parties where control exists
(a) ‘Triveni Iingincering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) (TEIL)

(ii} Related parlies with whom transactions have taken place:
{a} Huolding company
Tiveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL)
(L) Feilow Subsidiaries
Triveni Entertainment Limited (TENL}
Svastida Projects Limited {SPL)

(iii) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances:

Nature of transactions with Related Phrties
Service charges expense Il-Mar-18 70.35 - - 70.3%
3 -Mar-17 68.95 - - 08.95
[nterest expense 31-Mar-18 - 3501 . 350
31-Mar-17 - 36.00 - 36.00
Issue of equity share capital 31-Mar-18 6,000.00 - - 6,A00.00
31-Mar-17 - - - -
lssue of compound financial instruments 31-Mar-18 - . 20,000.00 20,000.00
{preference shares) 31-Mar-17 - - . B
Repayments of capital creditors {for purchase of 31-Mas-18 23,580.52 23,580.52
investment property) 3t-Mar-17 R - - .
Repayment of advances 31-Mar-18 1,376.14 - - 1,376,114
31-Mar-17 - - - -
Repayment of borrowings (Principal) 31-Mar-18 - 450.00 . 45000
3-Mar-17 - - - -
Qutstanding balances
Payable 3t-Mar-18 - - - -
31-Mar-17 24,956.66 504.00 - 25,460.66

{iv) Terms & conditions:

The transactions with related parties, including service charges/ interest expense, are made on terms which are at arm’s length after taking into consideration
market considerations, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof. The outsianding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement oceurs in cash.

{v) The amount of transactions/balances as stated above are without giving effect to the Ind A5 adjustments on account of fair valuation/amortisation.
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Nt 15 apiby] moanygunaent

For thee purjsose of capital maesgement, eapital includes tolal sty of the Company, The prisary objective of the capltal management 1 B macimize sharebiodib valae.
The Company does nal hive significant borrowings.

The Company manages ils capital structure and sakes sdjustinents i tight of cluanges [ economie conditlons. The Company iiay resort fo fusther issue f caj tok L mnd
expangion of business. The Company sianitaes capilalatraclure Qaowglh gearing ratto whick at he el of repoitlng period was as follows:

{avlar &

Nt Aggs (it 8). VA L R
Cuirant boreawings (note 9) e CA8040
‘Frade paynbles {node 10y 18938 SUHLA0
Other Fnanciad Habllities (nofe 11) - 2,[0.066
Tatal debt 4,736,689 WATL M
Less: Cashoand cash equivalents (mote '1(.\)) {56820 (45 483
Mot dfebt (A) 416168 25,340,600
Total equlty (nate 6 & note 7} 3,440.99 (At
“Totab equity and net debl {15} A3,604.67 43;&67."7
Grearlog ratio (A/B) 10% Hited

Upto fast year, other fimancial fabilities were higher due to acquisition of the investiment property. The position has been corrected during current year upen funding of
investment, including through realisability thervof.

No changes were made in the objectives, palicies or process for managing capital during the years ended 31 Marel 2018 and 31 March 2017,
Tha Company is not subject to gy externally imposed capital requirements.
Mate 20: Finaneial rizk manageaent

The Company’s financial liabifitles comprise of borrawings, teadi payables and othor financial liabilities. The Company's financial assets are prosently nonnisal and
vowprise of cash and bank balanves. The Company's activities does not expose il lo market risk and evedit risk. The Company manages its liquity through intereal aceruals
andd capital infusion from the Molding Company.

Lo view of nascent stage of business, the fiquidity rativs are not relevant. The operations of the Company during early stages of business will be supparted by the Holding
Company through loans or through equity infusion, s appropriate. All financial linlilities shall mature within one year from the reporting dale.
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Note 21; Fair value measurements

[{)] 1"!_1.1114"1! i by cate

Financial agsets - B S
Cash aond bank balances - 568,21 - THEZL
Other financial assols - - - 2,68
‘Total financial assets - 568.21 - 144,39
Financial tiabilitics
Borrowings - 4,717.94 - 450,00
Trade payables - 18.95 B HED
Other financiol liabilities . - - 25,080,006
Total financial liabilities - 4,736.89 - 2EATL G

{ity The lisbility component of compound financial instruments is <arried in books based on discounted cash flows {refur nole 6 & 8), The arrying
amowsl of rematning financial assets and financial liabikities are considered e be al thei fair values, by the management, due o their short-enn
nakure.
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Nele 22 Commititenls, contingunt Habilitles and contlngenl assets

Hasec on management anadysis, there are o maleriad eomnsdtments, contingent Habilities and contingent assels as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2007 3 Nilb,

Mote 23 Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Pevetopment Act, 2000

Hsed on the intimation received by the Company from its suppliers regardisg their status under the Miero, Smali and Mediom Enterprises Developrnont Act,
2006, the relevant information is provided here bolow:

Ihe principal amount and the interest due theroon retsaining unpaid to any supplier af the end of each accounting year; as at
the end of the year

(i} Principal amount
(i)_Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyoer i terms of section 16 of Micro, Small and Mediun Enterprises Development Act,
2006, along with the amewnt of the payment misle to the supplicr beyond the appoinled day daring cach accounting year, B

The amount of interest due and payabie for the yoar of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the

appuisted day during the year) but without adding the intevest specified wnder the Micro, Small and Medium Bnterprises
Development Act, 2006

The awount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of ench accounting year; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such dale when the inlerest ducs
abavy are actually paid to the stall enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expendilisre under section 23 of
the Micra, Small and Moedium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Note 24 Standards issued but not yet effective

The Misnistry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide notification datecd 28 March 2018 bas issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Kules, 214
which has come up with omission of Ind AS T1 Constriction Contricls & Ind AS 18 Revenve with the introduction of Ind AS 115 Revennie from Condrects with
Customers and amendments in various other End ASs, These amendments are offective for accounting periads beginning on or after 1 April 2018 ancl the Company

inlends to adopt these amendments when they become effective. The new Ind AS that are issued, but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance of the Company's
financial statements are disclosed below:

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers ; Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step mudel to account for reveue arising from contracts with customers, Unuler,
Ind AS 115 revenue is recognised when (or as) the onlity satisfies a performance obligation by wransfereing a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer
(i.e. when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset} al an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for,
ransforring goods or serviees to a customer, The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under I AS. Either a lull
retrospective application er a modified retrospective application is required for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2018. The Company is in
process of evaluating the requirements of the said standard and its impact on its financial staternoents.

Note 25: Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 14 May 2018 subject to approval of sharcholders.

As per our report of oven date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Engincering Limited
Chartered Accountants

irn's yepgistration number ; GO1111N

A et r—————_s.
Sudhir Mallick Atul Agarwal
Partney Director e,
Mensbership No, 80051 SOEES j,v;
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J. C. BHALLA & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

BRANCH OFFICE : B-5, SECTOR-6, NCIDA -~ 201 301 (U.P,)
TEL. 1 +91 - 120 - 4241000, FAX : +91-120-424 1007
E-MAIL : taxaid@vsnl.eom

Independent Auditors” Report
To the Members of Triveni Industries Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Triveni Industries Limvited
(‘the Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2018, the statement of profit
and [oss {including other comprehensive income), the statement of cash flows and the statement
of changes in equity for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “Ind AS financial
statements™),

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued
thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
inplementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial




considers internal financial control relevant to the Compaiy's preparation of the Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that “are
apprapriate in the circuinstances, A audit also includes evaduating e appropriateness of i
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS finan.cial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provicle a
basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company
as at March 31, 2018, and its loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income),
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report} Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the
Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@)  we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) = the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows and the
statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued
thereunder;

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the
Act

(f)  with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”; and




(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion anel to
the best of our information and aceording to the éxplanations glven to tis:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigation which would imipact its
financial position;

ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iti) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv) The reporting on the disclosure relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to
the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111}

/.

{Sudhir Mallick)
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Place: Noida

Date : &P') L
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Annexure A (o T pendent Audition! ilépmt

Referred to in Paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor's Rép'o'l't of even date under the !'\eac[iug‘
“Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” to the members of Triveni Industrics
Limited on the Ind AS financial statements as of and for the year encled on March 31, 2018.

L. Since the Company does not have any items of fixed assets with it, the provisions of
clauses (i)(a), (i{(b) & (i}(c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016
are not applicable to the Company.

2. Since the Company does not have any inventories, the provisions of clause (i) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the
Company.

3. According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses (iif) (a), (ifi) (b) & (iii)
(c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to
the Company for the current year.

4. According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the
Company has not granted any loan, made investment, provided guarantee or secutity as
specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, provisions
of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable to the Company for the current year.

5. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits within the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016
are not applicable to the Company.

6. As per the information & explanation given to us, the Company is not required to
maintain cost record under section 148(1} of the Companies Act, 2013,

7. (a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing with the appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value
Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues to the extent
applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
undisputed amounts in respect of statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2018
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

{b) According to the information and explanation given to us there were no dues of
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added
Tax, Goods and Services Tax and other statutory dues, which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.
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11,

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has ot
borrowed any amount from financial institution, bank and government and has not isswed
any debentures. = Accordingly, the provisions of clause (viii) of paragraph 3 of the
Companies (Aud1t01 Report) Ovder, 2016 are not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, there was no money raised by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) nor any tewm
loan was taken by the Company during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
(ix} of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company or on
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course
of our audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
paid/provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016
are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xii) of paragra ph
3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of
the Act, where applicable for all transactions with related parties and details of
transactions with the related parties have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us, the Company has not made
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debenture during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934,

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
irm Regn. No. 00111

-k
(Sudhir Mallick})
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Place: Noigla (U.2.)
Date / L(




Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Sectlon 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Triveni Industries
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that wete operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its agsets, the prevention and detection of frands and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to prowvide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparatiors of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accountting
principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statemen ts.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For ]J.C. Bhalla & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001113N

/e
I
{Sudhir Mallick)
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Date.: /\L]
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TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

tbance Shcel as ot March b, 2008

AN et i 7 Misssensde wiless atherieioe

ASSETS
Current nssels
Financial agscls

L Cash and cash equivalents

shaiind}

The accompanying notes 1t 20 form an integral part of these financial statements

As por our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants

Biin's registration nmnb7 GOTIIN

Sudhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Place : Noida (IJ.Dy)
Date : 0 ‘& Mp rf o ’/§

2 60,20 LR

‘Total current agsets ' 60,20 50.93
Total assets 60.20 50,99
LEQUELY AND LIABILITIES
LOQUITY
Lquity shave capital 3 50.00 50.00
Othoer equity 4 (337.78) (228.39)
Total equity (287.78) {178.39)
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

L. Borrowings 5 300.00 200,00

il. Trade payables 6 11.80 TLED

iii. Other financial liabilities 7 35.08 17.82
Othor current liabilities 8 110 -
‘l'otal current liabilities 347,98 229,32
Total Habilities 347,98 229,32
‘Total equity and liabilities 60.20 54,93

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Industries Limited

A

Satfinder Singh Walia
Director

DIN : 00296589

(\55@} & ?n{}
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TRIVENT INDUSTRIES LIMITED . . ' ‘

Statesnent of Proflil and Loss Tare the vear ended Marel 81, 2018

(A anmnnds fie 5 Mgy, il ol oice chwlods

{ncome

ixpenses
Finanee costs g 19,19

16,19
CHher expenses 10 90.20 119,41

Tatal expenses 109.34 136,00

Loss before tax (109.39) (136,00}
Pax expense 11

Loss for the year _ (109.39) (136.00)

Other comprehensive income

A (i) Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

A (i) Tncome tax relating to Hlems that will not be reclassificd to profit or loss
B{l) Dems that may be veclassified to profit or loss

B (i) Income tax velating to items that may be reclassilied to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

‘Total comprehensive income for the year {109.39) {136.00)

Earnings/{loss) per equity share of ¥ 1 each

Basic 12 (219 (2.72)
Diluted 12 (219 (2.72)

The accompanying notes 1 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants T

Firm's registration numbes: 001TTTN A

A /

Sudbir Mallick Satvinder Singh Walia Debajit Bagchi

Partner Director Director
Membership No. 80051

DIN 1 00296589 DiN @ 02561320

mimis

Place : Noida {

S E paye




TRIVENT INDUSTRIES LIMITED

tement of Changes o Bguity for the year encled 8acch 5L 2R

o st s N Baeninagess, e ofherieray shitbily

A, Lquity share capital

Liquity shares of €t cach issued, subscribed and fully paid ap

[As at 31 Marcl 2016

50,00
Changes during the year -
As at 31 March 2017 50.00
Changes during the yeay o
As at 31 March 2018 50.00

B. Other equity

ey y}’v" 2 4
Balance as at 31 March 2016

(92.39) (92,39)

Loss for the year (136.00) (136.00)

Other comprehensive income, bet of income tax - -

Total comprehensive income for the perlod (136.00) (136,00}
{Balance as at 31 March 2017 (228.39) {228,39)
Loss for the year (109.39%) {(109.39)

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax -

‘l‘Ii'ntal comprehensive income for the year {109.39) ' (199.39)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 {337.78) (337.78)

The accompanying notes 1 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhatla & Company
Chartered Accountants
Fign's registration numbey : 001TT1IN o

RS

PE————
Sadhir Mallick Satvinder Singh Walia
Partner Director

Membership No. 80051

Place: oidaw‘)
Date 7‘\/1 - /VLSB

DIN : 00296589

Debatit Bagehl
Direclor

DIN : 02561320

Ve

for and en behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Industries Limited
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TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Satlenwent of Cash Flows for the year ergled March 31, 2008
CAH auroamt i 3 Hiowsands, unless otheraoise sinied)

Cagh flows from operating activities
Loss before tax {109.39) {136.00}
Adjustments for

Finance costs 19.19 16.19
Working capital adjustments :

Change in trade payables 0.30 {39.95)

Change in other liablities 110 -
Cash generated from /(used in) operations {86.80) (159,76}
Income tax {paid)/ refund - -
Net cash outflow from operating activities (88.80) (18470
Cash flows from investing activities - -
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from investing activities - ~
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 100.04 g
Interest paic (1.9 (1.79
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 98.07 (1.79)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 9.27 (161.55)
Cagh and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 2) 50.93 212.48
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {refer note 2) 60.20 50,93

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activites:

Balance as at 31 March 2017 . .

Cash flows 100,00 (1.92)
Finance costs accruals - 19,18
Balance as at 31 March 2018 300.00 35.08

The accompanying notes 1 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company

Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration numbc7: 001111IN -t
Sudhir Mallick atvinder Singh Walia
Partner Director

Membership No. 80051

DIN : 00296589

Place : Noida (U, HP )

Date / Mg};!‘fgﬂi (

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Industries Limited

DIN: 025613 i,
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TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year endled March 31, 2018

Corporate information

Triveni Industries Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domictled
in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engincering & Industeies Limited owns 100% of equity share
capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at Deoband, District-
Saharanpur, Uttar Pradesh- 247554,

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
linancial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a)

()

Basis of preparation and presentation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

{if) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost

convention. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration glven in
exchange for goods and services.

{iii) Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedute I11 to the Act. The Company has

ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs are not capitalised during extended periods in which active
development of qualifying assets is suspended. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. When an impairment loss




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(d)

subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years, A reversal of an impairment logs is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Income tax

The Income tax Hability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bages
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

{) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognisect as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

(i) A contingent liability is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for
an item dealt with as a contingent Hability, a provision is recognised in the standalone financial

statements of the period (except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate
can be made).

(lil) A contingent asset s not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

(iv) Provisions, contingent Habilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

{f) Tinancial assets
(i} Clasgification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories;
+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
* those measured at amortised cost,

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows,

{ii} Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair vafue through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for

managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash Aows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI,

* Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the critevia for
amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets .
In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss

(ECL) madel for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FYTOCI debt instruments.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when
* the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

-
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Notes to thw financial stabeends (o Uk yuitr elded March 3t, 2018

(8) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(i}

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial Habildties
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and ihe
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of lhe
Company after deducting all of its liabilities,

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
* those measured at amortised cost.

financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it

is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting pertods.

Measurement

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction fromn equity.

Financial liabilities
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial lability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial Hability not measured at fair value through profit ot loss, transaction costs

that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilittes depends on the classification of financial

liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
labilities:

*  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVIPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVIPL. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

Amortised cost: Financial liabtlities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.
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{®)

)

(k)

{iii} Derecognition
Equity instruments
Kepurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directl y in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial Habilities
The Company derecognises financial fiabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying

amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the agset and settle the Hability simultaneously. The legally enforceable vight
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of defaull, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or paymenis and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the standalone balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on
hand, balance with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an
otiginal maturity of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value,

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above,

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company

by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares,

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Note 2: Cash and cash equivalents

At amortised cost

Bafances with banks

- i current aceounts 60.20 50,93

Total cagh and cash equivalents

60,20 5,93

Note & Lquity share capital

Nuinber

AUTHORISED
Equity shares of T 1 each 50,000 50.00 50,000 50,00

[SSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
Equity shares of T 1 each 50,000 s0.00 50,000 H0.00

(i) Movements in equity share capital

50,000
Movement during the year Z "
As at 31 March 2017 50,000 5,00
Movemuent during the year - : -
As at 31 March 2018 50,000 LS00

(1) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a par value of ¥ 1/- per share. The holder of equity shares is entitled to ane vote per share. The Company

dectares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Mecting.

i the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitied to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after meeting all fiabilities anc
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

{iii) Details of shares held by the hoelding company, its subsidiaries and associates

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company)

{iv} Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Helding Company)




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

st the tmekol shtemends for e sy edea) Marely 'L, 2

P eeeate < Hiencands, taless oo laied

Note 4: Other equity

Retained enrnings

I i)
{337.78) g

‘Total other equity

(i} Retained earningy

Cpening balance

{228.39) )
Laxss for the year

(0939 (136.00)
(337.78) (228.39)

Closing balance

“The amount that can be distributed by the company as dividends to its equity shareholders is determined considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013,

MNote 5: Current borrowings

Unsecured- at amortised cost
Repayable on demand
- Loan (rean related party (refer note 13)

300,00 00,06
300,00 0,00

Total current borrowings

(i) The weighted average effective interest rate on loans is 8% per annuem (31 March 2017: 8% per annum).

Note 6: Trade payables

Trade payables {at amortised cost)

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises (refer note 18}

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
e - ‘ 1180 - 1150 -
micro enterprises and small enterprises

Tatal trade payables 11.80 - 11.50 «

Note 7: Other financial liabilities

At amortised cost

Interest accrued 35.08 - 17.82 -

Total other financial liabilities 35.08 - 17.82 -

MNote 8: Other Habilities

Statutory remittances 110

Total other liabilities 1.8
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Note % fnance costs

Interest on loan 1948 0 ieo0
Gither intereal expense ) ’ 0119
Total linince costy 10,19 B 16,14

Note 10 Other expenses

Service charges 70,35 .00
Legal and professional expensges 4,93 RIVA
Payment Lo Auditors (see (i) below) 11,80 1150
Rates gl axes 0.44 1.62
Miscellaneous expenses 2.68 (.48
Total other expenses 90,20 119.81

(i) Payment to Auditors

Statutery audit fee
Total payment to auditors

Note 11: Income tax expense

Inceme tax recognised in profit or loss

Current tax
Deferrect tax

Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

Reconcitiation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

Loss before tax

" (109.39) (136.00)
tncome tax expense calculated at 25,75% (2017: 29.87'%) (2817) (lt1.UO)
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit 28.17 41.00
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss - -

Mote 12: Barnings per share

Loss for the year atiributable to owners of the Company [A] (109.39)
Weighted average number of equity shaves for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS [B] 50,000
Basic earnings/(loss) per equity share (face value of ¥ 1 per share) [A/B) (219) (2.72)
Diluted earnings/ (loss) per equity share (face value of T1 per share) [A/B] o (219 (2.723)

REA LY.
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Note 13: Related party transactions )

{1} Related parties whete control exists
(a} Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) (TEIL) '

(i) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place :
(a) Flolding company

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL)
(b) Fellow Subsidiary
Triveni Entertainment Limited (TENL)

(iii} Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances:

Nature of transactions with Related Ph}"t'i'es

Service charges expense 31-Mar-18 7035 - 70.35
31-Mar-17 75.00 - 75.00

Interest expense I1-Mar-18 - 19.18 i_‘).l&
31-Mar-17 - 16.00 16.00

Loan taken 31-Mar-18 - 100.00 100.00
31-Mar-17 -

Outstanding balances

Payable 31-Mar-18 - 335.08 335.08
31-Mar-17 - 217.82 217.82

(iv) Terms & conditions:

The transactions with related parties, including service charges/ interest expense, are made on terms which are at arm’s
length after taking into consideration market considerations, external benchmarks and ad]ustment theleof The
outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.
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Note 14: Capital management

The Company is yet to start business activities and hence, gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting period 18 not indicative of the capital
structure which the Company may like to adopt after commencement of the business. The resultant capital structure will qppropt‘lﬂtvly be
decided based on the business requirements and the industry bonc.hnuu ks,

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements,

Note 18: Financial risk management

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise of borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities, The Company’s financin] assets
are presently nominal and comprise of cash and bank balances. The Campany's activities does not expose it to market risk and crecii visk.
The Company manages its liquity through internal aceruals and capital infusion from the Holding Company.

In view of nascent stage of business, the liquidity rativs are not relevant. Financial labilities mainly include amount payable 1o the fellow
subsidiary towards the loan. The operations of the Company during early stages of business wiil be supported by the Moiding Company
through loans or through equity infusion, as appropriate. In view of the aforesaid and due to the fact that the major amount of financial
liabilities is due to the feilow subsidiary, the maturity of financial liabilities is flexible at this stage,

‘; othe
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(i)  Financial instruments by category

Financial assets
Cash and bank batances 60.20 50,93
Total financial assets 60.20 50,93
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 30000 200.00
Trade Payable 11.80 11,50
Other financial liabifities 35.08 17.82
‘Total financial liabilities 346.88 . 229,32
{ii}y The munagement considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial slatementg approximate

their fair values due to their short-term nature,
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Note 17: Conmitments, contingent Habilities and contingent assots

Based on minagement analysis, there are no material commitment, conlingent Habitities and contingent assets as at 31 March 2018 (31 Mfarch 2017 ¥ Nif),

Note 18: DiscJosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Baged on lhe intimation received by the Company from its suppliers regarding their status uneer the Micre, Small and Moedium Baterparises Development
Act, 2006, Uw relevant information is provided here below:

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year;
s at the end of the year

{i) Principai amount
{ii) Inlerest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in tetms of section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Dovelopment

Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appeinted day during each
accounling year,

The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed diy during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Smail and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

u

‘The amount of inlercst accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payabie even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure
under seetion 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Note 19: Standards issued but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide notification dated 28 March 2018 has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendmient
Rules, 2018 which has come up with omission of Ind AS 11 Constriction Conbrocts & Ind AS 18 Revenite with the introduction of Ind AS 115 Revepie from
Contracls wilh Custoniers and amendments in vatious other Ind ASs. These amendments are effective for accounting periods beginning on or altes?l April
2018 and the Company intends to adopt these amendments when they become effective, The new Ind AS that are issued, but not yet effective, upto the
date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below:

Ind A5 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers : Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for reveue arising from contracls with
customers. Under Ind A5 115 revenue is recognised when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service
(i.e. an asset) to a customer (l.e. when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset) at an amount that veflects the consideration to which the entity
oxpects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The new revenue standard wili supersede all current revenue
recognition requireinents under Ind AS, Either a fuil retrospective application or a modified retrospective application is required for accounting periods

commencing on or after 1 April 2018. The Company is in process of evaluating the requirements of the said standard and its impact on its financial
statemoents,

Note 20: Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directars of the Company on 14 May 2018 subject to approval of sharcholders.

As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants
Fipm's registration numjper : 001111N A

JP O — l‘-" f .
Sudhir Mallick atvinder Singh Walia Debajit Bagchi
Partner . Director
Membership No. 80051

DIN: 00296589
Place : Noida {U.P.
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J. C. BHALLA & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

BRANCH OFFICE : B-5, SECTOR-8, NOIDA - 201 301 (LJ.p.)
TEL. : +91 - 120 - 4241000, FAX : +91-120-424 1007
E-MAIL. : taxaid@vsni.com

Independent Auditors” Report
To the Members of Triveni Sugar Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Triveni Sugar
Limited ('the Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2018, the
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement
of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(herein after referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”),

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuting the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements
based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

HEAD OFFICE : B-17, Maharani Bagh, New Dethi - 110065 Tel. : +91-11-41551155




CJ

it
...,.»....-;“,.pr'

OPwstefrad ~
o VACES rds

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auchtmb specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards fequire that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Anaudit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboul Uk atouls
and the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements, The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind
AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required
by the Act in the manner 50 required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the
state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its loss
(financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”)
issued by the Central Government of India in tetms of section 143(11) of the
Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the
paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit;

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows
and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;
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(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statéments: comply. with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with
relevant rule issued thereunder;

(¢) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

() with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “ Annexure B”; and

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have pending litigation which would impact its
financial position;

it} The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ifi) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv) The reporting on the disclosure relating to Specified Bank Notes is not
applicable to the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co. |
Chartered Accountants E
Firm Regn. No. 001111IN }

i

A

‘_——_"__________,_.__—-—5-
(Sudhir Mallick)
Partner

Membership No. 80051

Place: Noi

Date ;L i?([;\lj’lv e~ o L




Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date under
the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” to the members
of Triveni Sugar Limited on the Ind AS financial statements as of and for the year
ended on March 31, 2018.

L

Since the Company does not have any items of fixed assets with it, the
provisions of clauses (i){a), (i}(b) & (i){c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

Since the Company does not have any inventories, the provisions of clause (ii) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion
the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.
Accordingly, clauses (iii) (a), (iif) (b) & (iii) () of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company for the
current year,

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion
the Company has not granted any loan, made investment, provided guarantee
or security as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, provisions of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company for the
current year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not accepted any deposits within the provisions of sections 73
to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under during the
year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

As per the information & explanation given to us, the Company is not required
to maintain cost record under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and any other
statutory dues to the extent applicable to it. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts in respect of statutory
dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.
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(b) According to the information and explanation given to us there were no
dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax and other statutory dues, which

- have not been deposited on account of any dispute. '

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not borrowed any amount from financial institution, bank and government and
has not issued any debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (viii) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable. ‘

According to the information and explanation given to us, there was no money
raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) nor any term loan was taken by the Company during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable

According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed ox
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
paid /provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause (xi} of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2016 are not applicable

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xii)
of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is in compliance with
Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable for all transactions with related
parties and details of transactions with the related parties have been disclosed in

the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us, the Company has not
made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debenture during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.




16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934,

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No, 001L1TN

T Maltick)

Partner

Membership No. 80051

Place: Noida (U.P.

Date /L{ é/f ) e W L’&




Annexure B to Independent Auditors” Report
Repott v the Inteenal TMnanctal Condeols under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Sectiom
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have andited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Triveni Sugar
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstaternent of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Com ’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting. ‘ N




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, ’

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent Hmitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degtee of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For J.C., Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Eixm Regn. Ne. 001¥11N

N/
(Sudhir Mallick)
Partner

Membership No. 80051
Place: Noida (U.P.)

Date : /L,( é// /L/Lx_:




TRIVENE SUGAR LIMITED

Baobinee Sheet as ab Marveli 3, 2008
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Current asnota
Fitiancial adacts
i Cashand cash equivalents 2 (a) 01,45 H5,23
o Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenis 2(b) 50.00 107.08
itl, Qther financial nssels 3 223 ) 85,32
‘lotad current assets 113,64 197,93
Total mysets 113.68 197,83
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUETY
Eqquity share capital 4 500,00 500,00
Other equity 5 (99,90) (316,39
Total equity 100.04 183.61
LIABELITIES
Curvent Habilities
Fiineiad Habilities
i. Trade payables 6 11.80 1150
Other current Habilitics 7 0.30 .
Income tax liabilities (net) 8 1.34 242
Total current labilities 13.64 14,32
Tatal liabilities 13.64 14,42
‘Fotal equity and Habilities 113,68 197,93

Fhe accompanying notes 1 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even dale attached

For ).C.Bhatla & Company
Clarlered Accountants
Hyny's registration number : 00121 1N

L

Sudhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Place : Noida (U,P.}

Date : 114 ér;(/

For gndt on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Sugar Limited

Debajlt Bagehi
Direclor

DIN : 02561320

i
5. 5. Walia
Director .
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TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Shatermrent of Profit angd Toss for The v eneled March 3, 08

i amonets i Biieannds, e pilerioing sladed)

Other ihcome 9 519 4,49
Tutud [reuinge 5,19 g4
Lipeuaes

Other expenses 110 #7.28 3.93
Fotal expenses §7.28 93.93
Loss before tax {82.09) (84.,04)
Tax expense:

- Current tax 11 1.48 295
- Deferred tax Tl - :
Total tax expense 1.48 295
Loss for the year (83.57) {86.99}
Other comprehensive income

A (D) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or joss - -
A (i) Income tax relating to items that will not be rectassified to profit or loss -

B{i) [tems that may be reclassified to profit or loss - .
B {if} Income tax refating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss -

Other comprehengive income for the year, net of tax ~ -
Total comprehensive income for the year {83.57) (86.99}
Earnings/{loss) per equity share of T1 each

Basic 12 (.17} {0.17)
Diluted 12 0.17) 17

The accompanying notes 1 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attachad

For ].C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants
‘lem's registration number : 011N

1

Sudiviv Maltick

Partner

Membership No. 80051

Place : Noiday(U.

Dale/(” =

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Sugar Limited

Debalit Bagchi

Director

DIN : 02561320

r\.f

5. 5. Walia
Pirector
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TRIVENL SUGAR LIMITED

Statoment of Changres i Eguily for the vear ended Mareh 38, 2018
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A, Byuity share capital

legsty shares of TF cach issued, subseribed and fully paid up

As ot 31 March 2016

500,60
Changes in equily share capital -
As at 31 March 2017 500.00
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31 March 2018 504,00

B. Other equity

Balance as at 31 March 2016 (229,40} (229.40)
Loss for the year (86.99) (86.94)
Other comprehensive incomne, net of income tax - -
‘Total comprehensive income for the year {86.99) {86.94)
Balance as at 31 March 2017 {316.39) (316,39}
Loss {or the year (83.57) (83.57)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (83.57) {83.57)
Balarce as at 31 March 2018 {399,96) {399.96)

The accompanying notes 1 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants

Hiran's registration number : 00[111 N

'

udhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80051

%?‘/Il)/

Debajit Bagchi
Directdr

DIN : (2561320
Place : Noida (

Date /L7

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Sugar Limited

A

5. 8, Walia
Directer




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows {for the year ended Mareh 31, 2018
(AN smoeintls i thotisaeds, s odliraiae sbifol)

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax (82.09) (84.04)
Adjustiments for

Interest income (5.19) (9.89)
Working capital adjustments :

Change in other liabilities 0.50 -

Change in trade payables (.30 0415
Cash generated from f(used in} operations {86.48) {93.88)
Income tax (paid)/ refund (2.96) (1.39)
Net cash outflow from operating activities {89.44) (95.27)
Cash flows from investing activities
Decrease/ {incrense) in depasits with banks 57.38 42,62
Interest received 8.28 11.06
Net cash inflow from investing activities 65.66 53.68
Cash flows from financing activities - -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities - -
MNet increase/ {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (23.78) (41.5%
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 2 (a)) 85,23 12682
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {refer note 2 (a)} 61,45 85.23

There are no changes in liabilities arising from financing activites during the year, including both changes from cash

flows and non-cash changes.

The accompanying notes 1 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements
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TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes ta the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Corporate information
Triveni Sugar Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domicilext in
India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 99.99% of equity share

capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at A-44, Hosiery Complex, Phase
1l extension, Noida, Uttar Pradesh- 201305,

Note 1t Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, urless
otherwise stated.

(a)

Basis of preparation and presentation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(1) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost

convention. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

(iii) Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. The Company has

ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Revenue recognition

The Company's revenue is from interest income, Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs are not capitalised during extended periods in which active
development of qualifying assets is suspended. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. e,

Mo,

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

{(d) Impairment of non-firancial assets

Non-financial assets ave tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indiecale
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of asisets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. When an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(e} Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financtal statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be avaitable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are alsc recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively,

{f} Provisions, contingent Habilities and contingent assets

{i) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation, When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

(i) A contingent liability is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, unless the possibility of an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. If it becornes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for
an item dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the standalone financial

—
o CmaBEr S
o

o
L ENET

. \\" .

Q'f Charlggeg \ O
= Accouniyhte] &




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

statements of the period {except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estirnate
can be made).

(i) A contingent asset is not recoghised in the standalone financial statements, however, s
disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of inconae is
virtually certain, then the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

(iv) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

{g) Financial assets
(iy Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
* those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assels
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

{ti} Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are

directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCIL.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FYTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

{iii) Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financinl Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss

(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the financlal statemants for the year ended March 31, 2058

(ivl) Derecognition of financial agscty

A tinancial asset is derecognised unly when

the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assel; ox
retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, bult asstmes o
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients,

*

{h) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

{i)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are clagsified as either {inancial liabilities
or as equily in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assels of the
Company after deducting all of its Habilities.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
*  those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
+ those measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it

is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

Measurement
Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial Hability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial lHability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial

liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
liabilities:

*  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FYTPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
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TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(i}

(k}

U]

are determined based on the effective interest method, Ihterest expanse that is  nol
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Tinance costs' line item.,
(iii} Uerecognition
Equity instruments

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in

equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, {ssue or cancellation

of the Company's own equity instruments.

financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's
obligations are discharged, cancefled or have expired. The difference between the carrying

amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable i3
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settte
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash egquivalents in the standalone balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on
hand, balance with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value,

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above,

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit atiributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.




TREVENI SUGAR L1MITED

Nt Lo Hhwe fisancial sbatements for e pear eoded March 31, 2018
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Nute 2: Cash and bank batances

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

At amortised cost

Balances with banks
- in current accounts 61.45 #45.2

‘Total cash and cash equivalents 61.45 85,23

(b} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

At amortised cost

Balances with banks
- in fixed deposits (eriginal maturity exceeding three months but upto une year) 50.00 107.38

Tutal bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 50.00 107.38

Note 3: Other financial assets

At amortised cost

Interest accrued 2.23 - 532

Total other financial assets 2,23 - 5.32 -

Note 4: Equity share capital

AUTHORISED
Equity shares of T1 each - 500,000 500.00 500,000 500.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
Equity shares of T 1 each 500,000 500.00 500,000 500,00

(i) Movements in equity share capital

As at 31 March 2016 ' 500,000

Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2017 500,000 500,00
Movement duging the year - -
As at 31 March 2018 500,000 500.00
,’,—»—"““‘ o
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TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Muten o the finvmciad stateanents for the v ended Sarch 31, 2018
LAl ol in ¥ Hhotsiid, iles othiertore sbdod)

{it) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equily shares wilh a par vadue of ¥ /- por share, The holder af equity shares is entitked to ene
vote per shave. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of r‘h lgclui"i in
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of cquity shares are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Clormpany,
after meeting alt labilities and distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their sharcholding.

{ili) Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

1"]-wum Engineering & Industries Limited (Helding 499,950 99.99% 499,950 90 94,
Company)

{iv} Dretails of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

'I;I'in)ni Engineering & Industries Limited {(Holding 499,950 99.99% 499,950 99.09%,
Company)

Note 5: Other equity

Retained earnings

(399.96) (316,39)
(399.96) (316.39)

Total other equity

{i) Retained earnings

Opening balance

Loss for the year (83.57) {86.99)
Closing balance (399.96) {316.39)

The amount that can be distributed by the company as dividends to its equity shareholders is determined considering the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

Note 6 ; Trade payables

Trade payables (at amortised cost)

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and . -
small enterprises (refer note 18)

- Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than 11.80 ) 11.50 ;
micro enterprises and smali enterprises ' '

Total trade payables 11.80

- 11.50 -




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes Lo the inancial stalernents Tor the yeae eoaded Slareh 34, 088
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MNote 7 : Other liabilities

SEatutury remittances

‘T'otal other Liabilities

Naote 8: Income tax balances

Income tax assets
Tax refund receivable {nel)

Income tax liabilities
Provision for income tax (net)

1.34 ' 282

1.34 2.82

Note 9 : Other income

Interest income from bank deposits

519 989

‘Total other income

5.19 .89

Note 10: Other expenses

Service charges

70.35 68.95
lLegal and professional expenses 3.63 11.33
Payment to Auditors (see (i) below) 11.80 11.56
Rates and taxes 0.44 1.81
Miscellaneous expenses 1.06 0.3
Total other expenses §7.28 $3.93

(i) Payment to Auditors

Statutory audit fee

11.80 1150

Total payment to auditors

11.80 11.50




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Moo to the firancial stalemends Tor the vear endhad Maoch 31, 2018
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Note 11 1 Income tax expense

Current tax

I vespeet of the current year Cind 395
In respect of the prior years 4 -

1.48 .95
Deferred tax - "
‘Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 1.48 2495

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

~(82.09) (404
Income tax expense calculated at 25.75% {2017: 29.87) (21.14) (25.00)
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit 2247 28.00
Changes in estimates related to prior years 014 -
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loys 1.48 3.00

Note 12: Barnings per share

Losgs for the year attributable to owners of the Company {A}

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS [B]

Basic earnings/ (loss) per equity share (face value of T per share) [A/B]
Difuted earnings/ (loss) per equity share (face value of ¥ 1 per share) [A/ B}

(83.57)

500,000

©.17)
0.17)

Mard7.

§6.99)

500,000} -




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Nates to the Hnancid statements for the vear ended March 51, 2018
(Al wmnoronts i § Maesaods, anlese otherieise stated)

Note 13: Related party transactions

{i) Related parties where control exists
{a} Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Molding Company) (1T4L)

(ii) Related parties with whom transactions have laken place:
{(a) Holding company
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (FLEIL)

(iii} Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances:

Nature of transactions with Related I’artiés

Service charges expense 31-Mar-18 70.35 70.35
31-Mar-17 68.95 68.95

Outstanding balances

Receivable/ Payables J31-Mar-18 - -
3t-Mar-17 - -

(iv) Terms & conditions:

The transactions with related parties (viz. service charges) are made on terms which are at
arm's length after taking into consideration market considerations, external benchmarks ancd
adjustment thereof. The outstanding balances at the year-end are T Nil.




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED ;

Nokens o the fnancial sinements for (he year ended Mareh 31, 2048
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Note td: Capital management

The Company is yet to start business activities and hence, gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting period s not indicative of the
capitat structure which the Company may like to adopt after commencement of the business, The rnstl!l(mt capltal s tructuge will
appropriately be decided based on the business requirements aad the industry benchmarks, :

The Company is nok subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.,

Note 15: Financial risk management

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise of trade payables, The Company’s financial assets comprise of cash and bank kalances. The
Company's aclivities does not expose it to market risk and eredit risk. The Company manages its Hquity through internal accruals ard
capilal infusion from the Holding Company.

In view of pascent stage of business, the liquidity ratios are not relevant. The operations of the Company during early stages of business
wilt be supported by the Holding Company through loans or throwgh equity infusion, as appropriate, The Company’s financial liabilities
comprise of trade payables which is expected to be settied within one year from the end of reporling year.
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Note 16: Fair value measurements

)

Financial instruments by cate oty

Fii."iﬂﬂ::i ascts’ . :
Cash and bank balatces “ 1145 - 19261
Other financial agsets “ 223 - 532
Total financial assels - 113.68 - 197,93
Finaneial Habilities
‘Trade payables - 11.80 - 11.50
Total financial labilities ' . 11.80 - 1150

{ii} The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assots

and finabial tiabllitios recognised in the fnancial stalements
approximate their fair values due to their short-torm nature.
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Note 17: Conunitments, contingent Habilities and contingent assets

Based o management analysis, tiere are no materia] commitment, contingent Habilities and condingent assets as ot 31 March 2008 (31 Mevech 2H7: TN,

Nole 18 : Disclosures requived under Section 22 of the Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Hased an the intimation received by the Company from ity suppliers regarding their status under the Micre, Small and Medivm Enterpri sos
Development Act, 2608, the relovant information is provided here below:

The principal amount and the interest due thereon re
iy at the éned of the year

() Mrincipal amount

(i) Interest cdlue on above

maining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year;

The ansount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Miero, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting -
year,

The amownl of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which bave been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specificd under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enlerprises Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, intil such date when the interest
dues above ase actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expencliture under
section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Note 19 : Standards issued but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide notification dated 28 March 2018 has issued the Companies (Indian Accounling Standards) Anmm!n‘\unl
Rules, 2018 which has come up with omission of Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts & nd AS 18 Revenre with the introduction of Ind AS T8 Revenne Jrom
Canlracls with Customiers and amendments in various other Ind ASs. These amendments are effective for accounting periods beginning on ov aller T April

2018 and the Company intends to adopt these amendments when they become effective, The new Ind AS that are issued, but not yet effective, upto thie
dale of issuance of the Company's financial staterents are disclosed betow; :
Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers @ Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model te account for reveue arising from conlracts with
customers. Under Ind AS 115 revenue is recognised when {or as) the entity satisfics a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service
(Le. an asset) to a customer (i.e. when (or as) the customer obtaing contee! of that asset) at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the ety
expecls to be entitled in exchange for transferving goods or services to a customer. The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenge
recognition requirements under Ind AS, Bither a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective application is required for accounting periods
commenging on or after | Aprii 2018. The Company is in process of evaluating the requirements of the said standard and its impact on its financial

statements,
Note 20: Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 14 May 2018 subject 1 approval of shareholders,

As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Sugar Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration numbgt : 0071111N

T
Sudhir Mallick Debajit Bagchi S. 5. Walia
Partner Director Director
Membership No, 80051

DIN 1102561320 - DIN: 002_2_@5“&9_%\‘
Place : Noida (.P ,fl/-” LAy \;.
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Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Triveni Entertainment Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Triveni Entertainment
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2018, the
statemnent of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of cash
flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as
“Ind AS financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in Inclia,

including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act
read with relevant rules issued thereunder,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit,

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards

and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Actand the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Anaudit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts andthe B
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend’ on the

Head Office : U-119A, Shakarpur, New Delhi- 110092, Mobite : 99103 67918 L
Branch Office : LG-C5-24 B, Ansal Plaza (Opp. Dabur India Ltd.}, Vaishali, Ghaziabad, U.P., Pin - 201010, NCR, India
Phone: +91- 120 - 4121942, E-mail: gupta_chitresh@yahoo.in R




auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’'s
preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to desigin
audit procedures that are appropriale in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting polcles used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Lo AY [uncral slalements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provicle
a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS (inancial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs (financial position) of
the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its Profit (financial performance including other

comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in

the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the
order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required' by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows and the

statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued
thereunder;

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified

as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2)
of the Act;

{(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reportm‘
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “ Annexure B”; and




(g) withrespect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion atd
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact :its
flnunetul poslidon;

if) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv) The reporting on the disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable
to the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 017079N

WUC\(Z/Q,Q//L/
CA. Chitresh Gupta

Partner
Membership no.: 098247

Place: Delhi
Date: [lf-08201




Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Feferred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of Triveni Entertainment Timited
on the Ind AS financial statements as of and for the year ended on March 31, 2018

1.

@»

The Company does not have any items of fixed assets and hence reporting under clavise
3(i) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted
loan to a company covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act, in
respect of which:

(a) The terms and condition of the grant of such loan are, in our opinion, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

{b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated
and repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest have been regular as per
stipulations.

(c) There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at year-end.

The Company has not made any investment nor provided any guarantee or security. In

respect of loans granted provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act, where applicable,
have been complied with.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(v} of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to maintain any cost records under sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Act.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Income-
Tax with the appropriate authority. According to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company’s operations did not give rise to any dues on account of Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Excise Duty,
Value added tax, Goods and services tax, Cess and other material statutory dues. There
are no undisputed amounts outstanding and payable as at March 31, 2018 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.




10.

11

12,

13.

14.

{(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of
Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Excise Duty, Value added tax and
Goods and services lax as at March 31, 2018 on account of any dispute except as unders

Wame of Statute Nature |Assessmenl  Amount in Forum where

of Dues Year Rs.! Dispute is pendin ¢
[ncome Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax | 1993-94 2,83,065  Assessing Officer
[ncome Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax | 1999-00 5,331  Assessing Officer
locome Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax | 200102 | 46,203  Asscasing Officer
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax | 2001-02 1,13,508  Assessing Officer

The Conpatty lias ol taken any loans oe borrowlngs from Firanctal Insdearons, Bariks
and Government and has not issued any debentures. Hence reporling under clause
3(viii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has nat raised any maneys by way of initial public offer or further pullic
offer (including debt instruments) or term loans during the year and hence reporting
under clause 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried
out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practice in India and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have been
informed of such case by the management.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for
managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during
the year.




15. According to the information and explanations given W us and based on our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 017079N

CAIEN X/Qph/

CA. Chitresh Gup ta
Partner

Membership no.: 098247

Place: Delhi
Date: /) - §~ ;20]3




Annexure B to Independent Auditors” Report

Report on the Internal Finaneial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Triveni
Entertainment Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our aulit
of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Conlrols over Financial Reporting issued by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting,




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A campany's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to perrnit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets tlnt could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent Iimitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree.of complance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 017079N

Choskes (e

CA. Chitresh Gupta/ :
Partner :
Membership no.: 098247

Place: Delhi o
Date: [ -08 208




TRIVENLENTERTAINMENT LIMUTTD

Balitnee Sheet os ol March 3, 2008

(A it e S hoteennds, witiess ofhieviage sdited)

ABRETS

Noti~turrent asacts

[nviestrment property 2 38,336,740 34,230.70
Income tax assets (ned) 3 47,57 62,04
Tatal non-current agsets 38,434.27 840874

Curpent azsets
Firmneial assets

i, Cash asul cash equivalents 4(a) G70.40 118.57
il Hanh badances other tan casf sl cnabyvpuivalonls A1) “ 4,023F]
il Loans ] 360.00 1,450,060
iv. Other financial assets [ 3508 555,30
Total current assets 1,311.48 6,550,640
Tolal assets 39,745.75 41,956,472

THILAEY A LIANELITINE

EQUITY

Fejuity share capital 7 41,700,00 28,700.0¢
Other equity 8 (1,969.51) {2,081 40}
‘Total equity 39,730.44 26,618.60
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Financial tiabilitios

I ‘Trade payables 9 14,75 14.38

il.  Other financial liabilities 10 - 18,323.44
Other current labilities 11 0.50 - #
Total current linbiltties 15.25 18,337.82
Total biabilities 15.25 18,337.82
Total equity and liabilities 39,745.75 44,956.42

The aceompanying notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financiat statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For Aid on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Entertainment Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm's regisiration number : 017079N

Suresh Taneja

Partner Director ,/g,;{]j%;\
Membership No. 98247 2 R

DIN: 00028332

Place : Noida (U.P.} .2:
Date : fLf~§> o 18




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Statement ol Profit and Loss (or the year ended Mareh 31, 2018
AN wmnis i thewsnde, ifess ot ietse shited

Other jncome 12 437,96 L
Tolitl income 437.96 WA
Feponses AR
Crher expenses 13 20144 o 'l?‘_(i.'/_{l
Total expenses 260144 176,70
Profit before tax 176,53 205,76
‘Tax expense: _

= Current tax 14 04.63 U8,
» Doferred tax 1 . .
Tutal tax expense 61,63 . B.35
Profit for the year 111.89 20741
Other comprehensive income

A (i} [ems that witt not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
A (i) Income tax relating to items that witk not bo reclassified to profit or loss -

B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss -

B3 (i) Income tax relating to iterns that may be reclassified to proefit or loss -

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax -

Total comprehensive income for the year 111.89 A17.41
Earnings per equity share of ¥ 10 each

Basic 15 0.04 .07
Diluted 15 0.04 047 .

The accompanying notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firpr's registration number : 017079N

Chitresh Gupta
Partner
Membership No. 98247

Suresh Taneja
Director

DN @ 00028332
Place : Noida (U.P.)

Date : [ - §- Jolb

i behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Entertainment Limited

Drebajjit Bagchi
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TRIVENTENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Statvaaent ol Changes in Fguily for the year endoed dazch 3,

A ol 1 Niensoneds, nnivss otherieiae stglmt)

A, Bquity share capital

Equity shares ol ¥ 10 cach issued, subseribed and fully pald up

[As at 31 March 2016

28,700.00}

Changes during the year o
As at 31 March 2017 28,700.00
Equity shares issued during the year 13,000.00
As at 31 March 2018 41,700.00

B, Other equity

Balance as at 31 March 2016

(2,288.81) (2,288.81)
Profit for the year 207 41 207.41
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
‘T'otal comprehensive income for the year 20741 20741
Balance as at 31 March 2017 (2,081.40) (2,081.40)
Profit for the year 111.89 111.8%
Other comprehunsive ingome, not of income tax - b
Total comprehensive income for the year 111,89 111,89
Balance as at 31 March 2018 {1,969.51) {1,969.51)

The accompanying notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates Fora
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : 017079N

cele

I

Chitresh Gupta. Suresh Taneja
Partner . y Director
Membership No. 98247/ -,

DIN : 00028332
Place ; Noida (UP.)

Date & Y .0 ¢ “2(,&’9 ’

on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Entertainment Limited

Debalit Bagchi
Directpr P
DIN : 02561320 // @\d”ff":.ﬂ\
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TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2008
CMEamousits i & thewsonds, nndess ofbierasise staled)
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 176.53 295.76
Adjustinents for ‘
fderest inwonwe (457906} (474440)
Worklng capltal adjustments :
Change in trade payables 038 {0.95)
Change in other liabilities 0.50 -
Cash generated from / {(used in) operations {260.55} {177.65)
Tncome tax paid {93.16) (92.74)
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from operating activities (353.71) (270.3‘.)}
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for purchase of investment property {18,323.44) -
Repayiment of loans given 1,350.00 -
Loans given {100.00) -
Brecrease/ (increase) in deposits with banks 4,323.81 169.74
Interest received 961.17 102.59
Net cash inflow/ (oulfiow) from investing activities {11,788.46}) 272,33
Cash flows from financing activitics
Procecds from issue of equity share capital 13,000.00 .
Net cash inflow/ {outflow) from financing activities 13,000.00 B
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 857.83 1.94
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year {refer note 4 (a)) 118.57 116,63
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {refer note 4 (a)) 976.40 11857
There are no changes in labilities arising from financing activites during the year, inciuding both changes from cash Hows and non-
cash changes.

The accompanying notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates Fora
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : 017079N

Tk

Chitresh Gupia
Partner
Membership No. 98247

on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Entertainment Limited

Suresh Taneja Debajit Bagchi
Director Director

IDIN : 00028332 DIN : 102561320
Place : Noida (U.P)

Date : J4f - 05 - ;20]25




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Corporate information

Triveni Entertainment Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and
domiciled in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of
equity share capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at Grand Plaza, 104,
1% fioor, 99, Old Rajinder Nagar Market, New Delhi- 110060,

Note 1; Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

{a) Basis of preparation and presentation
() Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013 (the Act) {Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii} Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost

convention. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

{iii) Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule II1 to the Act. The Company has

ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and labilities.

{b) Revenue recognition
The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
cutstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition,

{c) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected

inflationary cost increases in which case lease expenses are charged to profit or loss on the basis of
actual payments to the lessors.
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TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(<) Impairment of non-financial assets

{e)

{£)

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes In cireumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment foss ts recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped al the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assits
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. When an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all ternporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and labilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is
capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as stated in Schedule II along with residual values of 5%.
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TRIVENT ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the linancial staterments for the year endoed March 31, 2018

(&) Provislons, contingent HablHties and contingent dssety

()

(i)

{iv)

Provisions are recoghised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be recuuired to settie the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to seltle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be recetved
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. If it becomes probable that an outfiow of future economic benefits will be required for
an item dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the standalone financial

statements of the period (except in the extremely raré circumstances where no reliable estirmate
can be made},

A contingent asset is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

(h) Financial assets

)

(ii)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

+  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
» those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or foss are expensed in profit or foss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

«  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost iy
recognised In profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financlal agsets is recognised using the effective interest rate method,

*  TFair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH: Assets thal are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financiat assels, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCT

*  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do nol meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOC! are measured at fair value through protit or loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment toss associated with its financial
assets carried at arnortised cost and FYTOCI debt instruments.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when
+ the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash Hows from the financial asset; or
retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a

contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(i) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

U

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial Hability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities,

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial Habilities in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
* those measured at amortised cost,

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial Habilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

(ii) Measurement

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial Hability at its fair value net of, in the
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()

that ave directly attributable to the issue of the financal Hability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or toss,

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of finarcial
liabilities, There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
Habilities:

Faiv value through profit or logs (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial fiability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are staled at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss,

Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not hefd-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the "Finance costs' line item.
(ili) Derecognition
Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying

amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an inteniion to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.
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(m)

Casgh and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the standalone balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on
hand, balance with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments withy an
original maturity of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value,

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above,

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjustec for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take inte account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dijutive potential equity shares,
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Note 2: Envestauent property

Gross carryin

Cpening gross carrying amotsnd g ST g0 383360
Additions o R ‘ IREE
Deletions . “
Closing gross cacrying amosnt 38,336.70 38,436.70

Accumutated depreciation and tmpalrment
Opening accumulated depreciation and impairment
[Pepreciation charge/ Impairment losses

Clesing accumulated depreciation and impairment

Net can’ying amount 38,336.70 38,334,710

(i} Pescription abouk investment properties
‘The Company's investasent propertios consist of parcel of kbl at Dibai, District Bulandshahar {Utlar Pracdesh), bdia.

(ii) Amaunt recognised in statement of profit & loss
There is no amount related to investment property which is recegnised in statement of profit & loss {31 March 2017: ¥ Nil)

{it) Restrictions on realisability and contractual obligations
The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of ils investment property and no contractual obligations ta either purchase, constuct or
develop investiment property or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

{iv) Fair value

The investment property owned by the Company is sitwated in the vicinity of sugareane growings aveas. The property was purchased in the year
2015-16 at the circle rate from the Holding Company. In view of slowdoewn in real estate and industeial activities, the fair value eannot be
determined realistically in the absence of transactions of similar properties {including size) in the vicinity of the subject property.

Note 3: Income tax balances

& Non= cirrent:

Income tax assets )
Tax refund receivable (net} §7.58 - 69.04 -
97,58 - 69.04 -

Tncome tax liabilities
Provision for income tax {net) - - - .

Note d: Cash and bank balances

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

Ak amorlised cost

Balances with banks

- iy current accounts 976.36 118,53
Cash on hand .04 0.04
Total cash and cash equivalents 976.40 118.57

{b)} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

I-Mae-17
At amortised cost

Balances with banks
- in fixed deposits (originat maturity exceeding three months but upto one year) - 4,323.81

L 43238

AN
S e,

Total bank balances other than cash and éash
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MNote 5 Loans

At amortined cost

Lanvi o eedoded paetica (vefar nole 16)
= Unseeured, congiderad goad 30041 - 1,550.00

Total loans 30060 - 1,550.00 .

Mote 6: Other financial assets

At amortised cost
Interest aceruad 5.8 - 558.30

Total ether financink assets 3508 - 556.30 -

Note 7; Equity share capital

AUTHORISEDD
tguity shares of T 10/- each 4,308,000 43,050.00 4,000,000 40,000.00

ISSUED, SURSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
Ecquity shares of 210/ - cach 4,176,000 41,700.00 2,870,000 28,700.00

(i} Mevements in equity share capital

ntount

i !
As at 31 March 2016 2,870,000 28,700.00
Movement during the year - .
As at 31 March 2017 . 2,870,800 23,700.00
Equity shares issued during the year 1,300,000 13,000.80
As at 31 March 2018 4,170,000 41,700.00

(i1) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a par value of T 10/- per share, The holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend propased by the Board of Ditectors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the halders of equity shares are entitied to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after meeting
all liabilities and distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their sharcholding.

(iii} Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

B3

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited {Holding Company) 4,170,000

(iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) 100% 2,876,000 100%

S

A
: <3 Rfg .
S e
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s
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Note 8: Other cquily

il . ﬁlmMﬂu‘l_
CSeIS) L (2L0BLAD)
{L969.51) {2,061,40)

Retatnic eirnings

Total other equily

{1) Retained earnings

M8 M7

uning Latance (208140 {2,288.81)
Profit for the year 111,89 71
Closing balance (1,969.51) {2,081.40)

The amount that can be distributed by the company as dividends to its equity sharcholders is determined considering the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Nate 9 Trade payables

Trade payables (at amortised cosf)

- Tolal outstanding dues of micra enterprises and ~
small enterprises (refer note 22)

- Total owstanding dues of ereditors other than 1415 14.38
mdero enterprises and small enterprises ) '

Total trade payables 14.75 - 14.38 -

Note 10: Other financial liabilities

At amortised cost

Capital creditors

- - 18,323.44

Total other financial liabilities

- - 18,323.44 -

Note 11: Other Yabifities

Statutory remittances .50

Total other Habilities 0.50

MNote 12: Other income

Interest income from bank deposits

313.75 348.46
Interest income from loans

124.21 124.00

Total other income

437.96
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Note 13 Other expenses

Rent 132.00 Frats
Service charges 70.35 G5
Legal and professional expenses 10.65 13,25
Mayment to Auditors {see (i) below) 15.13 1458
Rabes anel taxes 29.8% 201
Miscellaneous expenses 342 111
‘Total other expenses 261.44 {7670

(i) Payment to Auditors

Statutory audit fee 1513 1.38

Total payutent to auditors 15.13 14.38

Nate H; Income tax expense

[neome tax recognised in profit or loss

Current bax

1 respect of the cusrent year 54.35 68,34
In respeet of the prior years 10.28 "
64.63 88.35

Deferred tax

Total income tax expense recognised in profik or loss 64.63 B88.35

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

Profit before tax 176.53 195,76

Incomne tax expense calculated at 25.75% (2017: 29.87%) 45.46 58,35
Effect of expenses that are non-deductible in determining taxable profit 8.89

Changes in estimates related to prior years 10.28 |
Total income tax expense recognised In profit or loss 64,63 8835

Note 15: Earnings per share

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company [A} 111.69 20741
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ dituted EPS [B} 2,887,808 2,870,000
Basic earnings par equity share (face value of 210 per share) [A/ 8] 0.04 .07
Diluted earnings per equity share (face value of ¥ 10 per share} {A/B} 04 0.07
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Naote 10: Rebated pasty transactions

ti} Related parties where controf exists

(i) Teiveni Engincering & ndustries Limited {Holding Conypany} (T1351)

(i) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place :
() Holding company
Telveni Engineering & Industries Bimited (TBIL)
() Fetlow Subsidiaries
Svasllda Projects Limited ($120)
Trivend Sugar Limited (15L)
Trlvent Industries Limited (1L}
Trivent Enginerring Timitoel (11}
Triveni inergy Systems Limited (TESL)

(iii} Details of ansactions between the Company and related parties and outs)

Nature of transactions with Related Partles

anding balances:

Servive charges expense 31-Mar-18

70,35 - B . . 70,35

31-Mar-17 6B.9% - - - " 08,95

Interest income 31-Mar-18 - 35.01 19.17 35.m 35.01 2421

31-Mar.1? - 36.00 16,00 36,00 36,00 124,00

Issue of equity share capital I1-Mar-18 13,600,00 - - - 13,000.00
3-Mar-17 - - . B . oo

Loan given 3l-Mar-18 - 100.00 “ B . 106.00
I-Mae-17 - - - - -

Repayment of loans piven 3l-Mar-18 - 450,00 - 450.00 45100 1,350.00
31-Mar-17 - - - N . -

Rupayments of capital creditors (for 31-Mar-18 18,323.44 - - - - 18,323.44
purchase of investinent property) 31-Mar-17 - N . - . .

Outstanding balances

Recelvable 31-Mar-18 - - 335.08 - - 335.08

31-Mar-17 B 504,00 217.82 504,00 504.00 1,729.82
Payable 31-Mar-18 - - - - - -

31-Mar-17 18,323.44 - - - - 18,323.44

{iv} Terms & conditions:

The transactions with velaled parties, including service charges/ interest income, are made on terms which are at arm’s length after taking into censideration market
considerations, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof. The outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. The Company has

not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related partics for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,

e
f;

iy,

AR
oy

RNEK]
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Note 17: Capital managemenl

For the purpose o capltal aanagenuwnt, caphlal nclides ol equity of the Company. The primaey objective of the capilad masagesnant is o

The Company manages its capital structure and makes wdjustments io light of changes in economic conditions. ‘The Company way resort to figether
Istue of caplial to fund expinsion of business. The Company menitors capilal structure Urowgh gearing totio which ot the end of reporking pericd

‘Frivcle payables (note 9) 14.75 .38

Other financial labilitles (note 10) - 18,323,444
Totak debt : 14.75 18,337.82
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {note 4(a)} (976.40) (118.57)
Net debt {A) (961.65) 16,219.25
‘Total equity {note 7 & 8) 39,730.49 26,618.00
"Total equity and net debt {B) 38,768.8¢ 44,837.45 |
Guaring ratio (A/B) -2% 410%

Uplo last year, other financial labilities were higher due to acquisition of the investment property. The posttion has been corrected during cureont
yeis upon funding of investment, including through realisability thereof.
Nu changes were made in the objectives, policies or process for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2018,

The Company is not subject Lo any externally imposed capital requirements.

Note 18: Financial risk management

The Company’s financial Habilities comprise of trace payables and other financial abilities, The Company’s financial assets comprise of cash and
bank balances and loans. The Cotmpany's activities does not expose it to market risk and credit risk, ‘Fhe Company manages its liquity through
uternal aceruals and capital infusion from the Holding Company.

In view of nascent stage of business, the tquidity ratios are not relevant. The operations of the Company during early stages of busiviess will be

supported by the Holding Company through leans or through equity infusion, as appropriate. All financial liabilities shall mature within one year
from the reporting date,
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Note 19 ¢ Faiv value measurements

(I}  TFinaneial instruments by category

TV,

i.:
Financlal fesets ) B RRRE
“Cash and bank balances 976,40 b2 38
Loans - 500.00 " £,550.450
Other financial nssets - 35.08 - 55850
‘Total financiad assety - 1,311.48 “ 0,550.68
Financial liabilities
Trade payables . 14,75 - L
Other financial Habilitios - - - lﬂ,dthl'l,
Total financial abilitiey - 14,75 - 14,0782

{ti) The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial

assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial stalements
approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature,

:
i
!
:
:
H
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Note 20; Commibmenls

Bsedd on managemoent analysis, there are no material conymitmenis as s 31 March 2008 {3F Mareh 2007: TN,

Nute 21: Contingent Habilities and vontingent assets

Cfunlingcnt labilitles

Chiling agadnst the Company net ackiowlidgied 08 delts fexcluding interest and pénatty}

fcome tx

A48.11 EULAR

Conlingent assets

Hased on management analysis, there are no material contingent assels as at 31 Maech 2018 (3 March 2017: ¥ Nil).

Note 22: Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micvo, Simatt and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Based on the intimation received by the Company from its supplicrs regarding their status under the Micro, Snalland Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, the refevant information is provided hese Below:

e prineipat amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaic
as at the end of the year

{i) Principal amount

{ii} Interost due on above

any supplicr at the end of each accounting your;

‘The amount of interest paid by the buyer in teems of section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developiment
Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the suppliey Beyond the appointed day during cach
aceounting yoar.

Ttse ameznt of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Smalt and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

‘The amount of interest accrued and remaining snpaid at the end of cach accounting year; and

‘The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the smail enterprise, for the purpase of disaliowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micre, Smalt and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Note 23: Standards issued but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide notification dated 28 March 2018 kas issued the Companies {Idian Accounting Standards) Amendiment
Rules, 2018 which has come up with emission of Ind AS 1t Consiruction Contracts & Tnd AS 18 Revenree with the Introduction of Ind AS115 Rewenne from
Contracls with Customers and amendiments in various otier Ind ASs. These amendments are effective fer accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April
20118 and the Company intends to adopt these amendments when they kecome effective. The new Ind AS that are issucdd, but not yot effective, upto the
date of issuance of the Company's financial statements are disciosed below:

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers @ Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for reveue arising from contracts with
customers, Under Ind AS 115 revenue is recognised when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service
{i.e. an asset) to a customer (e, when (or as) the customer obtains comtro of that asset) at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The new reverue standard will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under Ind AS. Either a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective application is required for accounting periods

commencing on or after 1 April 2018, The Company is in process of cvaluating the requirements of the said standard and its impact on its financial
statements,

Note 24: Comparatives

The Company has reclassified certain items of financials of comparative year to confirm this year's classification, however, impact of these
reclassification are not material.

Note 25; Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 14 May 2018 subject to approvat of shareholders,

As per our report of even date attached

For Chilresh Gupta & Associates For andl pn behalf of the Beard of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration number : 017079N
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Chitresh Gupta
Partner
Membership No. 98247

Triveni Entertainment Limited

Director Director

DIN : (0028332 DIN: 61320

Place : Noida (U.P)
Date : ] L - ei—- 20
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Independent Auditors’ Report

1o the Members of Svastida Projects Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Svastida Projects

‘Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2018, the
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of cash
flows and the stalement of changes in equity for the year then ended and a summary of the
significanl accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as
“Ind AS financial statements”),

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act
read wilh relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind-AS
financial statements are free from material misstatement, R

Head Office : U-119A, Shakarpur, New Delhi-11009Z, Mobile : 99103 67918 - ’
Branch Office : LG-CS-24 B, Ansal Plaza (Opp. Dabur India Ltd.)}, Vaishali, Ghaziabad, U.P., Pin - 201010, NCR, India
Phone: +91- 120 - 4121942, E-mail: gupta_chitresh@yahoo.in

Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants




Anauditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Ind AS financial stalements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those rigk
assessients, the auditor considers internal financial control refevant to the Company's
prepuration of the Ind AS financial statements that give a trae and fair view in order to design
audit procedures thal are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evalualliyg the upproprlateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs (financial position) of
the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its loss (financial performance including other

comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date. .

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Governument of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in

the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the
order,

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows and the

statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued
thereunder;

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2)
of the Act; eyt




(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “ Annexure B”; and

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 8 Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion an.d
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its
financial position;

iiy The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foresecable losses;

iii) There were no amounts which were tequired to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv) The reporting on the disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable
to the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 017079N

Ch et

CA. Chitresh Gupta
Partner
Membership no.: 098247

Place: Delhi
Date : 14-05-2018




Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of Svastida Projects Limited on the
Ind AS Financial statements as of and for the year ended on March 31, 2018

1. The Company does not have any fixed assets and hence reporting under clause 3(i) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

2. The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

3

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited Hability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii){a), clause 3(iii)(b) and clause 3(iii}(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

4. The Company has not granted any loans nor provided any guarantee or security and
hence provisions of Section 185 of the Act are not applicable. In respect of investments
made, provisions of Section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

5. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

accepted any deposits during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Ordler is not applicable to the Company.

6. The Company is not required to maintain any cost records under sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Act.

7. (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Income-Tax with the appropriate authority. According to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company’s operation did not give rise to any dues on
account of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of
Customs, Excise Duty, Value added tax, Goods and services tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues. There are no undisputed amounts outstanding and payable as at March
31, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b} According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of
Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Excise Duty, Value added tax and
Goods and services tax as at March 31, 2018 on account of any dispute.

8. The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from Financial Institutions, Banks
and Government and has not issued any debentures. Hence reporting under clause
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

9. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or furthe it >
offer (including debt instruments) or term loans during the year and he ¢ reportmg\
under clause 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. R PRy 5\..'

TN




10.

12

13.

14.

15,

16.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried
out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practice in India and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have been
informed of such case by the management

. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on owr

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not paid/ provided for
managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In owr opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and details of such
fransactions have been disclosed in the  financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential

allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 017079N

CA. Chitresh Gupta
Partner
Membership no.: 098247

Crobeede

Place: Delhi

Date : 14-05-2018




Annexure B to Independent Auditors” Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-gection 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Svastida Projects
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the yeur ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria establish.ed
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adhereince
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internmal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting anct the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles,

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permil
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements. '

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procecures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 017079N

Partner 5
Membership no.: 098247

Place: Delhi
Date : 14-05-2018




HVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Badance Sheel os al March 31, 2018

i o theiesands, oy oflieviodse shided

|ASSETS

Nan-current assets
Financial nasets
f.o Inveastmients 2 pHREIAREN] 4
Income tax assets (net} 3 114 J.M
Total non-current assets 20,001.14 16
Current assets
Finoncial ossels
. Cnuhoand cash equivalonds 4 (n) 496.30 18050
i, Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalunts 4 (1) 114.52 07.37
ith.  Other financial assets 5 510 4155
Oier enrrent pssnks i - 0,000, 00
‘Fotal current assets 61592 20,230.62
Total assets 20,617.06 20,233,92
EQUITY AND LEABILITIES
EQUITY
Iiguity shave capital 7 21,500.00 20,500.00
COther equity 8 (900.7) (781,57
Total equity 20,599.21 19,718.43
LAABILITIES
Cravrent labilitieg
Financial liabilities
. Borrowings 9 - 450.00
ii. ‘Tvade payables 10 16.56 B
ili,  Other financial liabilities 11 - 53,99 °
Other current liabilities 12 1.29 «
Total current liabilities 17.85 51549
Total Habilities 17.85 515.49
Totad equity and liabilities 20,617.06 20,233.92

‘The accompanying notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number ; 017079N

Chitresh Gupta / <

Partner
Membership No, 98247

Place : Noida {U.P.)

Date : ]L/‘-Dj a?_g)jg

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Svastida Projects Limited

Director

DIN : 90296589

‘%9 $
Debaji Bagch: f‘:’} : ‘f

3] N
ﬂ!? 315\.&?}
\u

DN : 02561321




BVASTIDA FPROJECTS LIMITED

Statenent of Profiland Loss for the year ended Mareh 31, 2018
et pmonnts i ihewenads, wadess gihorasise skibed)

Olbier incose 13 8,25 . » 66}
Total income .23 1La%
Expangon i
Fliang ool 14 Do a6
Other expenses 15 2.4 426
‘Totaf expenses 12745 12820
Loss before tax {119.22) (116,87}
Tax expense:

« Current tax 16 - -
- Defesved tax 16 . e

Total tax expense

L.osy for the year (119.22) (116.87)

Other comprehensive income

A (i) Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
A (iiy Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

B{§) lems that may be reclassified to profit or loss

B (it} Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year {119.22) {116.87)

Earnings/(less) per equity share of T1 each

Basic 17 0.01) .
Difuted 17 .01} (0.01)

The accompanying notes | to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
)

lor Chitresh Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Svastida Projects Limited
Chartered Accountants

Fleny's registration number : 017079N

atvinder Singh Walia Debhjit Bagchi L
Partner Director Direttor /-:.C;:‘}-’”L’ L A
Membership No., 98247 ] /';5:7 - ~
DIN : 00296589 DIN " 02561320; ay i'x!g;; i

(i

Place : Noida (U.P) \_?f;a HEE }

Date : | L/ - 05" Dol %




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

staterment of Changes By Bopatly fon U yosr ended March 31, 2008
A mennts e 3 oo, videss atferaoise stafedd

A Bguity share capital

of T each i

ued, subscribed and fully paid up

Auat 31 March 2016
Chanpes during the year -
Ag at 31 March 2017 o _20,500.00
guity shares issued during the year 1,000.04
As at 31 March 2018 ' T 21,500.00

20,500.00

B, Other equity

Balance as at 31 March 2016 (664.70)

(660,701

Laoss for the year (116.87) (116.87)
Other comprelensive income, net of income tax -

‘Total comprehensive income for the year {116.87) ('116.87j

Balance as at 31 March 2017 {781.57) (781.57)

Loss for the year (119.22) (119,22}
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

Total compeehensive income for the year (119.22) (11922}

Balance as at 31 March 2018 {900.79) {900.74)

The accompanying notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements

-

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Svastida Projects Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firnv's registration number : 017079N

OM‘F(A/%/LL)

-

Chitresh Gupta
Partner
Membership No. 98247

Satvinder Singh Walia Debalit Bagehi
Director Director

DIN: 00296589 DN : 02561320
Place : Neida {U.P)

Date : [&f - 0857~ 20l




SVASGTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED fh

Stternent of Cash Flows for the year encled March 31, 2018
(Al igonnts i ¥ thousandde, unloss ofboroise staled)

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before tax

(119.22) {116.87)

Adjustments for :
[nterest income (8.23) (11.39)
Finance costs 35.04 36.00

Working capital adjustments : .
Change in trade payables

H00 .45
Change in other liabilities 1,29 .

Cash generated from /(used in) opérations (86.06) (92.21)
Income tax (paid)/ refund 216 (1ot
Net cash outflow from operating activities (83,90} {93.35)
Cash flows from investing activities

Investmoent in preference shares (Fellow Subsidiary) (20,000.00} -
Capital advance received back 20.000.00 -
Decrease/ (increase) in depoists with banks (7.14) 42.63
Interest received 7.28 15.89
Net cash intlow from investing activities 0.14 108.52

Cash flows from financing activities
Procecds from issue of equity share capital 1,000.00

Repayment of short term borrowings {450.00) .

Interest paid (89.04) (3.67)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 460.96 {3.6')
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 377.20 1157
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 4 (a)) 11916 107.54
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {refer note 4 {a}) 496,30 119,10

Reconciliation of Habilities arising from financing activites:

Balance as at 31 March 2017 450.0 54.0
Cash flows (4500 (89.0)
Finance costs accruals - 35.0
Balance as at 31 March 2018 - -
The accompanying notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Svastida Projects Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : 017079N

- /
Chitresh Gupta ——— inder Singh Walia
Partner .

Membership No. 98247

Director

DIN: 00296589
Place : Noida {UP)

Date : ]bj- t'.?f*.,‘.?.@fg .




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements far the year ended March 31, 2018

Corporate information

Svastida Projects Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domicited
in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of equity shhare
eapital of the Cnmpany The registered nffice nf the Campany is focatert af A-d4, Hosiery Complex, Phase
Il extension, Noida, Uttar Praclesh- 201305,

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

{a) Basis of preparation and presentation

{b)

()

(i}

(i)

Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (fnd
AS)} notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies {(Inclion
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015} and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost
convention except for investments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for value in use in Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets (see- note

1(c)).

Clagsification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. The Company has

ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net

carrying amount on initial recognition.




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

¢}

(4

(e)

(f)

Impairment of non-financial assets : : :

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher-of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
{cash-generating units), Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each repotting period. When an impairment loss
stbseduently reverses, the careying amount of the asset is increased l he revised eslimate of ils
recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs are not capitalised during extended periods in which active
development of qualifying assets is suspended. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit, The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to aliow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in

which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(i) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all of. the

‘! ¢4 £ 2




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial staterments for the year enced March 31, 2018

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

economic benefits required to settle a proviston are expected to be recovered from a third pavly,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably,

A contingent [liability is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote, If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for
an item dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the standalone financial

statements of the period (except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate
can be made).

A contingent asset is not recognised in the standalone financial statements, however, is
disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset,

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date,

{g} Financial assets

{i)

(i)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
» those measured at amortised cost,

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income, For assets in the nature of debt instruments, this will depend on
the business model.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurerment
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

-

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method. 7 ¥ojen




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year enced March 31, 2018

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assiety’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCT.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOC] are measured at fair value through profit or logs. A gain or loss
on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the otatement of profit and logs within
other gains/ (losses) in the period in which it ariges.

{fii) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
{ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

{iv} Derecognition of firancial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

* the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

{h} Financial liabilities and equity instruments

()

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
* those measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods,

Measurement
Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction

-

cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity. R T
s




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(i}

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at faiv value through profit or loss, transaction cosls
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial tiability. Transaction costs of finarcial
liability carried al fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of finarcial
liabilities, There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
Habilities:

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is desighated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cos
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘'Finance costs' line item.

{iii) Derecognition
Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in

equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial Habilities when, and only when, the Company's

obligations are discharged, cancelied or have expired. The difference between the carrying

amount of the financial lability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss,

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 81, 2018

()

(k)

(1)

Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value measurements are categorised intoe Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the Inpats
lo the fabr value measurements are obsuevable and the significance of the inpuls Lo the fair vatue
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

*  Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Company can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or Hability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the standalone balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on
hand, balance with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months ot less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITLD

totes o the linaociel slalenwais for e vear cnlesd Mareh 33, 018
(A it in @ Mo, vindess ofheriosi shted)

Note 2; Noi-currenl investments

At Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Unquoted Tnvestments {fully paid-up)
Investments in Preference shares

2A0.00,000 (31 March 20¢7 1 Nil) 10 % Noa-Camutative Redeemable Proference

A (Nl

share of 21 /- ench of Triveni Engineering Lindted (Fetlow Subsiclinry) 20,000.00

Total non~current investmenls 20,000,00 “
Total non-current investments 20,000.00 ’

Appregiste mmount of quoted investiments
Aggregate amount of market vaiue of quoted investimenl -
Aggregate anount of unguoted investments HLOG0,04
Apgregate amount of impaisment by the value of investments

Nute 3: Incoine tax balances

Income tax assets
Tax refund receivable (net) . L - 3.3

- 1.14 - 3,30}

Income tax liabilities &
;
Pravision for income tax (net)

MNote 4: Cash and bank balances

{a) Cash and cash equivalents

(o ETe i

At amortised cost

Balances with benks
- in current accounts 496.30 119.710

Total cash and cash equivalents 196,30 11930/

{b} Bank bala}nces other than cash and cash equivalents

At amortised cost

Balances with banks
- in fixed deposits (original maturity exceeding three months but upto one year) 114.52 107.37

Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 114.52 107.37

Note 5: Other financial assets

At amortised cost

Interest accrued on bank deposits 5.10

Total other financial assets - 510




SVASTIDA PROJECES LIMITED

Notes o he naneid slabements for e veir opded Mach 31,2018
(AN gt b 8 flaipneds cgdess etheraetse stated)

Noti G Otfier agicts

-Nots etifron

Cpital v ' : e o R, ) ‘J'ﬂ‘ﬂnﬂ.ﬂﬁ T . T

‘Total other nssels . - - 20,600.00

Mote 7: Equity ahare caphtal

AUTHORISED :
Equily shares of 3% each 40,000,400 40,000.00 40,000,000 4,000.00)

1SSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID U ]
Equily shares of T1 each 21,500,060 21,500,860 20,500,600 20,500.00

(i} Movensents in equity share capitat

Muniker of shiase:

As at 31 March 2016 20,500,000 20500100
Movenent during the yeir - L
As at 31 March 2017 20,500,000 20,500,040
Equity shares isstied during the year 1,000,000 1,000,040
As at 31 March 2018 21,500,000 21,500.00

(il} Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has anly one class of equity shares with a par value of T1/- per share. The holder of equity shares is entitled o one vote por
share. The Company declares arl pays dividends in Indian rupews, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subjact lo the approval
of the shareholders in the ensuing, Armual General Meeting.

In the cvent of liquidation of the Campany, the holders of equity shaves are entitied to yecelve the yemaining assets of the Company, after
mweeting ali liabilities and distribution of all preferential amounts, i proporlion to their sharcholding.

{iii) Details of shares held by the bolding company, its subsidiaries and associates

Triveni Engineering & Industrics Limited (Holding

. 21,500,000 100% 20,500,000 100%
Company) )

{iv) Details of sharchotders holding more thao 5% shares in the Company

‘Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding

21,500,000 20,500,000
Company)

Note 8: Other equity

Retained earnings (500.79)

7
(781.57)

[Tatal other equity (900.79) {781.5%)
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SYASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Nates t the feneiab statenents foe the year erededd Marcts 38, 2018
(A nits i < thotanands, wfoss ofhierige striod)
(B} Retained carnings

.

pnlmbnlnlce . : S Hi.l’r‘f} - (GM.?}
Laoss for the year, P R T . ) o o (1192 - {l16.87>
Closing balance ) e e R o Coee (e {781573]

The amotnt that can be disteibuted by the company as divideida to Bs equity sharcholders Is determined considering the requivements of they
Companies Act, 2013,

Note %: Current barrowinga

Ungecureds at amortsed cost
Repayable on demand
- Loan from refated party (refer nate 18) - #50.06)

Total current borrowings - 450.0¢)

(i) The weighted average elfective interest rate on feans Is 8% per annuny (31 March 2017 8% per annam).

Note 10: Trade payables

Triide payi\bl"ﬂ {at mviortised cost) .

- Totad outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
smill enterprises (refer note 24)

- Total vuistading dues of creditors ather than
migro enterprises and small enterprises

16.56 - 11.5¢

Total trade payables 16.56 - 11.50 “

Nete 11: Other financial liabitities

At amortised cost

Interest accrued - - 53.99 -

‘Total other financial liabilities - " 53,99 -

Noke 12: Other fabilities

Statutory remittances 129 - - -

Total other liabilities 1.29 - . .

Note 13; Other income

Inlerest income from bank deposits 8.23 11.39

Total other income 8.23




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Bk o the Binvneial shstemests o e vear ended Sarch 3 2018
(A it b & Howsods, sitdess athteranss sheted)
Note 14: Fluaites costy

FMar18 S ALMar AR

Note 18: Other expenses

Ratey and taxes 1.84 pAix}
Legal and professional expenses 7.28 9.80
Payment to Aticlilors (see (1) briow) 12,10 1150
Service chavpges 7035 0898
MisceHaneous expenees 0.74

Total other expenses 92.41 92,29

{i) Payment to Audilors

Sllutury auclit [ec 2,
[Total payment to auditors 12,10 11.50|

Note 16: Tneome kax expense

Income tax recognised in profit or juss

Cursent tax

Deferred tax

Tedal income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:
T B F ¥ P

3i:Mai-16

Toss before tax {119.22) {116.87)
[ncome tax expense caleulated at 25.75% (2017: 29.87%) ) {30.70) {35.00)
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determiriing taxable profit 30.70 35.00

ITntal income tax expense recognised in profit or foss

Interest on Toas 36,01 e B
Other Interest expense 043 e
FUtH FHIANLE ddot S840 N6

Note 17: Earnings/{loss) per share

A1-MaraBiiie
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company [A] (119.22)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS [B] 20,527,397

£h31Mar-17

Basle earnings/ (loss} per equity share (face value of T 1 per share) [A/B} (0.01)
Diluted earnings/ (loss) per equity share (face value of €1 per share) [A/B] (0.01}




SVASTHDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Motes o the Hranedat statoents for the year ended March 31, 2048
S ennenatope 3 hopsands, ardess olleroise stated)

Note 18: Related party transactions

(i) Related parties where control exists
{a) Trivent Ingincering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) {TEIL)

(if) Related parties with whoem transactions have taken place
(a) HMolding company
‘Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TTHL)
() Pelbony Gubagidinries
‘Friveni Entertainment Limited (TENL)
‘Triveni Engineering Limited (TEL)

(iii) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances:

Nature of transactions with Related Parties
Service charges expense 31-Mar-18 7035 - - 70.35
31-Mar-17 68.95 - - 68.95
Interest expense F1-Mar-18 - 35.01 - 35.01
31-Mar-17 - 36.00 - 36.00
Investments in Preference shares 31-Mar-18 - - 20,000.00 20,800.00
31-Mar-17 - - - v T
tssue of Equity Share Capital 31-Mar-18 1,000.00 - 1,000.00
31-Mar-17 - - ~
Capitat advance received back 31-Mar-18 20,000.00 - - 20 000.00
31-Mar-17 - - -
Repayment of borrowings 31-Mar-18 - 450.00 - 450.00
(Principal) A1-Mar-17 - . - .
Outstanding balances
Receivable 31-Mar-18 oo - - -
31-Mar-17 20,000.00 - 20,000.00
Payable 31-Mar-18 - - - -
31-Mar-17 - 504.00 5(4.00

{iv) Terms & conditions:

The transactions with related parties, including service charges/ interest expense, are macte on terms which are at arm’s length after taking into
consicleration market considerations, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof. The outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and
settlement occurs in cash. The Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties for the year

ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.
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SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED -

SMotes tothe fivancial stalements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(A amounts i O honsmnls, urless plherivise stafed)

Note 1% Capital management

The Company is yet to start business activities and henee, gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting period s nat incicative of
the capital strueture which the Company may like Lo adopt after commencement of the business, 'I her twu%lant capital structure
witl appropriately be decided based on the business requirements and the industry bcnchnmrkq

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed eapital requirements.

Note 20: Financlal visk management

The Company’s financral habtlibies comprise of borrowings, trade payables and other tHnancial linbilities. The Uompany's
financial aggotk comprioe of cach and banle balances and investients in preference sharen of o feltow subaidiary, The Comapany'o
activities does not expose it to market risk and creclit risk. The Company manages its liquity through internal accruals and
capital infusion from the Holding Company.

In view of nascent stage of business, the liquidity ratios are nol relevant. Financial liabilities mainly include trade payables. The
oprerations of the Company during early stages of business will be supported by the Holding Company through loans or
through equity infusion, as appropriate. All financial liabilities shall mature within one year from the reporting clate.- 7




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Piartess to the Dianesad statenients for s ysar erided Morch 30 fing
(AR menntan  Wiezsgnds, siless oferceine eted)

MNote 21: Falr value measurements

(i}

[Findnicial suu(ﬁ ] :
fnvestments 20,000,060 * " -
Cash ancl bank balances - [(IL(RIYS - 220,47
Other financial assuts . 5,k “ 118
Total financial assels 20,000,180 615,92 - 23062
Financial Habilities
Borrowings . N B ASILAG
Trasle gayahlig . Tt - B
Orther finaneial Labilition - - - 53.499
Total Mnanclal liabilities - 16.50 - S15.49

Mandatorily reguired to b measured at FYTPL. There i no financiis] nstrament which i deatgnated ag BYTPL,

Tadi valuc hiconschy
This section explaing the jucdgernents and estimates nsde By determining the faie valees of the flnanclal instrinents thal are
recognised and measured at fale value, To provide an tdication abowt the reliability of the iopute used in delermisdeg falr value, the

Company has classifiet its (inancial Instruments inte the three fevels proseribed under the sccounting standaed. An explanation of
vach level follows underncath Lhe talle,

Financial assels and labilitics measured at faic value - reestrring fair value measturements

As at 31 March 2018

{financial assels

- Investents in Proference shares at PYTPL (Uswuoted) 2 - 20500000 - 20,606.00
- 20,000.00 u 20,000,00

Financial liabilities - " ,

As at 31 March 2017 .
Financial assets B - .

Financial liabiities - - - -

Level i Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted unadjusted market prices in active markets for
tdentical assets or liabilities. This includes listed equity instruments that have guoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments
which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting date.

Level 2: The fair vaiue of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. Il all significant inputs required
to fair value an instruinent are observable, the instrument s included in tevel 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market dats, the instrument is included in level 3.

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year,

(iii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques has been used {o determine the fair value of investment in preference shares of a fellow subsidiary
company. The fair valuation is determined using market observable inputs, including provalent interest rates/ coupon rates for the
maturities of similar instruments in the market, Such fair value estimate is included in level 2.

({iv) Valuation processes

)

The Finance team headed by Group CFO has requisite knowledge and skills in valuation of financial instruments.

Fair value of financial assets and tiabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)
The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial staternents

approximate their fair vaiues mostly due to their short-term hature, o T
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SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Shetes to e Danial stotements Tor Uae vear ended March 23, 2004
AN o f B, wedess othepaise phalid

Moty 22: Commitiments

Hatimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and ot provided fov (et of advances} - §,200,00

Note 23: Contingent linbilitics and contingent agsets

Based on management analysis, there are no material contingent liabilities and conlingent assets as at 31 Marcl 2018 (31 March 20173 Ni)

Note 24: Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Miceo, Small and Medium Gnlerprises Development Act, 2006

Based on the intimation recelved by the Conpany from its suppliess regarding their status unsher the Micro, Small and Muodium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, the relevant information is provided here below:

he principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining uapaid to any sapplier at the end of each ‘\LLULHIUE\},
year; as at the end of the year

{) Principal amotunt
(i} interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micro, Smatl and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2000, along with the amount of {he payment made te the supphier beyond 1he appointed day during each
accounling year.

"The amcunt of jsterest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) bul without adeding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

‘The amount of interest acerued and vemaining unpaid at the end of eacls aceounting yoar; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the suceceding years, until such date when the - :

Note 25: Standards issued but not yet effective 2
The Ministty of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide notification dated 28 March 2018 has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2018 which has come up with omission of Ind AS 11 Conslruction Confracts & Ind AS 18 Revenne with the introduction of Ind AS
115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and amendments in various other Ind ASs. These amendments arc cffective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2018 and the Company intends to adopt these amendments when they become effective. The new Ind AS that are issued,
but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements are disclosed below:

nd AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers : Ind AS 115 cstablishes a five-step madel to account for reveue arising from contracts with
customers. Under Ind AS 115 revenue is recognised when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service {i.e. an asset) to a customer (i.e, when (or as) the customer obtains control of that assct) at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The new revenue standard wilk supersede all current
revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. Either a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective application is required for

accounting periods commencing on or after T April 2018. The Company is in process of evaluating the requirements of the said standard and its
urpact on its financial statements.

Note 26: Comparatives

‘Ihe Company has reclassified certain items of financials of comparative year to confirm this year's classification, however, impact of these
reclassification are not malterial,

Note 27; Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 14 May 2018 subject to approval of shareholders.

As per our report of even date attached

For Chikresh Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Svastida Projects Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm's reglstntlon nu% 079N -

itresh Gupta ) _ inder Singh Walia Debajit Bagchi
Partner T Director Director
Membership No. 98247
DIN : 00296589 DIN :'02563320

Place : Noida (U1) :
Date : L/ oL ‘QWFQ’




